

Newlane University Course Catalog

Newlane Academic Year 2022 - 2023

Table of Contents

| Contact Information | 4 |
|--|----|
| Welcome Letter | 5 |
| Mission | 6 |
| Goals and Outcomes | 6 |
| Recognition | 7 |
| Academic Calendar and Hours of Operation | 8 |
| Administrators | 9 |
| Legal Control | 9 |
| Advisory Council | 10 |
| Faculty | 11 |
| Technology Requirements | 12 |
| Confidentiality and Privacy Policies | 13 |
| Collection of Personal Information | 13 |
| Information and How We Use It | 13 |
| International transfers of your PII | 14 |
| Collection and Use of Non-Personal Information | 15 |
| Information Sharing | 15 |
| Your Rights | 16 |
| Opt-in | 17 |
| Security of your Personal Information | 18 |
| Adherence to The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974 | 18 |
| Children's Online Privacy Protection Act | 19 |
| Use of Cookies | 19 |
| Google Analytics | 19 |
| Your California Privacy Rights and Do Not Track Notices | 20 |
| The Newlane Learning Platform | 20 |
| Third Party Websites, Cookies and Privacy Policies | 21 |
| Third-party Providers | 21 |
| Third-party Links | 21 |
| Age of Consent | 21 |
| Retaining and Deleting PII | 22 |
| Changes to this Policy | 22 |
| Compliance with this Policy | 22 |

| Course/Program Listings with Program Outcomes | 22 |
|---|-----------|
| Course Descriptions | 34 |
| PHIL399 Capstone Projects | 53 |
| Admission Criteria | 56 |
| Initial Admissions & Enrollment Criteria | 56 |
| English Proficiency Standards | 57 |
| Satisfactory Academic Progress Policy | 58 |
| Transfer Credits | 60 |
| Transfer Credit Disclosure Statement | 62 |
| Grading Policies | 62 |
| Student Code of Conduct and Grounds for Dismissal | 64 |
| Complaint/Grievance Policy Procedure: | 65 |
| Student Identity Verification | 66 |
| Non-Discrimination Policy | 67 |
| Graduation Requirements | 68 |
| Degree Time Requirements | 68 |
| Academic Integrity Standards and Policies | 68 |
| Leave of Absence Requests | 70 |
| Student Services | 70 |
| Tuition/Fees | 70 |
| Refund Policy | 71 |
| Financial Assistance | 74 |
| Scholarship Policy and Procedures | 74 |
| Counseling/Placement | 75 |

Contact Information

Newlane University 3450 Triumph Blvd Suite 102 - Room 130, Lehi, UT 84043 $\,$

Phone: (385) 204-3316

www.newlaneuniversity.com

Governing Board:

Ben Blair, Co-Founder

Josh Stanley, Co-Founder

Erin Stanley, Chief Operations Officer

Welcome Letter

Dear Newlane Student,

Welcome to Newlane University!

However you found us, we want to welcome you to Newlane! We're here to support learners from all over the world as they work toward earning their degree with us. Students come to Newlane from all different walks of life, and for many different reasons. This catalog provides all the essential information to help you succeed at Newlane, and provides references for most any general question you might have about your studies with Newlane.

I encourage you to take some time to read through this catalog, then refer to it as needed if you have questions throughout your program. We've tried to make it easy to find the information you're looking for. You'll find that Newlane is serious about our mission to make a quality higher education accessible, and we are committed to supporting you.

Again, Welcome to Newlane! We're delighted your studies can find a home with us.

Sincerely,

Ben Blair, PhD

Co-Founder, President, Newlane University

ben@newlaneuniversity.com

Buju Com

Mission

Mission: The mission of Newlane University is: "To make quality online liberal arts higher education accessible to anyone on earth by breaking down barriers of cost, schedule and geography."

Our Learning Principles:

Newlane University is an online university that combines the best of contemporary learning theory with the abundant high quality instructional materials available today. The Newlane experience is oriented around discrete and clear learning objectives that have been carefully aligned with those in comparable courses and programs at respected universities. At Newlane, the aim is to master the learning objectives, not to spend time listening to a lecture, or consuming instructional media.

Demands of Programs:

Newlane Degree programs are rigorous academic programs, requiring students to master college-level conventions in writing, critical thinking, research, and documentation. Newlane programs take a competency-based education approach. This means that students pass courses only as they demonstrate mastery of the course goals and objectives, not just for spending time in the course. Accordingly, each course has a "course hearing" where a student meets in a live video conference with an expert. During these course hearings, the expert asks open-ended questions about the course goals and objectives and follow up questions to verify and approve that the student has mastered all the course goals and objectives, or not yet. Students should expect to spend two years in full time study to complete the Associate of Arts degree, and an additional two years in full time study to complete the Bachelor of Arts degree.

Goals and Outcomes

Newlane University tracks the following outcomes: Program-specific outcomes; Student satisfaction; and Graduate Success.

Program-specific Outcomes

Associate of Arts in General Studies:

- Express self clearly, accurately, and succinctly in written and spoken work.
- Be familiar with, and work effectively with different forms of inquiry and knowledge (e.g., scientific, mathematical, humanities, the arts, etc.)
- Effectively conduct and interpret findings from scientific experiments.
- Effectively conduct and interpret findings from social scientific studies.
- Effectively read and interpret involved texts from a range of disciplines.
- Demonstrate habits of successful college study.
- Describe and develop intellectual and practical skills including clear communication, quantitative reasoning, qualitative reasoning (critical, analytical, and creative thinking), and information literacy.
- Describe and develop habits of ethical reasoning and conduct, effective social responsibility, civic engagement, and global citizenship.

Bachelor of Arts in Philosophy:

- Rigorously evaluate ideas and arguments.
- Explain important ideas and works of prominent philosophers.
- Explain important critiques of works of prominent philosophers.
- Recount and analyze fundamental questions and propositions concerning reality, knowledge, and value.
- Competently incorporate formal reasoning techniques to articulate and evaluate arguments.
- Compare basic philosophical trends and key ideas across history.
- Outline philosophical issues in a range of intellectual domains.
- Construct coherent arguments in support of one's views.
- Present accurately and fairly views that differ from one's own.
- Write philosophical arguments, exegeses, and interpretations clearly and in an organized manner.

Student Satisfaction:

At Newlane, we ask all students to complete a student satisfaction survey. We also ask all students to complete an end-of-course evaluation form upon completing each course. These satisfaction figures are drawn from those two surveys:

Over 95% of student respondents would recommend Newlane to a friend.

Over 95% of student respondents agree that Newlane experts were quick to respond to any inquiry.

Over 95% of student respondents Strongly Agree or Very Strongly Agree that the objectives they were expected to master in Newlane courses were clear.

Over 95% of student respondents Strongly Agree or Very Strongly Agree that by the end of the course, they were confident they had mastered the course goals and objectives.

Over 95% of student respondents Very Strongly Agree that they were assessed according to their own understanding of the course goals and objectives, not in competition with other students.

Over 95% of student respondents rate the learning materials used in our courses as Very Good or Excellent.

Over 95% of student respondents rate Newlane courses overall Very Good or Excellent.

Graduate Success:

Newlane had its first graduate from the Bachelor's program in the Spring of 2020. This graduate also was accepted into a Master's degree program at the University of Nottingham. Newlane had its second graduate, and first graduate from the Associate program in the Fall of 2021. This graduate is working on the Bachelor's degree in Philosophy through Newlane.

Recognition

Newlane University is accredited by Accreditation Service for International Schools, Colleges and Universities (ASIC). ASIC accreditation helps students and parents make a more informed choice and

will also help a school, college, university, training provider or distance education provider, demonstrate to the international student body that they are a high quality institution.

ASIC is recognised by UKVI in UK, is a member of the CHEA International Quality Group (CIQG) in USA and is listed in their International Directory, is a member of the BQF (British Quality Foundation) and are institutional members of EDEN (European Distance and E-Learning Network). ASIC is not recognized by the United States Department of Education. Newlane University is not accredited by an accrediting agency recognized by the United States Department of Education.

Note: While many organizations and educational institutions both within and outside of the United States recognize ASIC as a reliable accreditor of colleges and universities, in the United States, many licensing authorities (e.g., teacher licensing, etc.) require degrees earned from colleges accredited by an agency recognized by the United States Department of Education (US DOE). ASIC is not recognized by the US DOE. Moreover, in some cases, accredited colleges may not accept for transfer courses and degrees completed at colleges not accredited by agencies recognized by the US DOE. Further, in the United States, some employers may require a degree-granting institution to be accredited by an agency recognized by the US DOE as a basis for eligibility for employment. Before undertaking any program of studies in higher education or training, Newlane University strongly advises interested applicants to consult with licensing authorities, professional associations, colleges and universities, and prospective employers to determine with clarity if the desired degree program will meet their professional requirements.

Accreditation Service for International Schools, Colleges and Universities (ASIC) is not recognized by the United States Department of Education. Newlane University is not accredited by an accrediting agency recognized by the United States Department of Education.

Newlane University is REGISTERED UNDER THE UTAH POSTSECONDARY PROPRIETARY SCHOOL ACT (Title 13, Chapter 34, Utah Code).

Registration under the Utah Postsecondary Proprietary School Act does not mean that the State of Utah supervises, recommends, nor accredits the institution. It is the student's responsibility to determine whether credits, degrees, or certificates from the institution will transfer to other institutions or meet employers' training requirements. This may be done by calling the prospective school or employer.

Academic Calendar and Hours of Operation

Newlane University accepts enrollment applications continually. Newlane degree programs are self-paced and take a competency-based approach, so students can begin and complete their coursework according to personalized schedules. Students can pass a course as soon as they can complete the Newlane University assessment process.

Start Date: Ongoing

End Date: Depends on student

Newlane University Calendar 2022-23

Holiday Schedule

Newlane University offices will be closed on the following days. However, students

have access to their online courses every day, including holidays.

| Holiday | Academic Year 2021-22 |
|-----------------------------|--------------------------|
| Labor Day | September 5, 2022 |
| Thanksgiving Day Observance | November 24 and 25, 2022 |
| Christmas Day | December 25, 2022 |
| New Year's Day | January 1, 2023 |
| Martin Luther King, Jr. Day | January 16, 2023 |
| Memorial Day | May 29, 2023 |
| Independence Day | July 4, 2023 |

Hours of Operation:

M-F 9am - 5pm MST; 9am - 5pm CET (i.e. 1am - 5pm MST or 9am - 1am (+1) CET), and by appointment.

Administrators

Administrators of Newlane University:

Ben Blair, Co-Founder, President, Chief Academic Officer

Josh Stanley, Co-Founder, Chief Technology Officer

Erin Stanley, Chief Operations Officer

Avi Mintz, Curriculum Director

Kensie Louw, Student Support Director

Martha Thalman, School Librarian

Legal Control

Newlane University is the DBA designation of Teachur, Inc. Newlane University is the designation of the degree granting institution.

Directors and Officers of Newlane University:

Ben Blair, Co-Founder, President, Chief Academic Officer

Josh Stanley, Co-Founder, Chief Technology Officer

Erin Stanley, Chief Operations Officer

Kensie Louw, Student Support Director, Secretary

Dan Finnerty, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer

Advisory Council

The Newlane Advisory Council meets at least annually, and provides advice on the current level of skills, knowledge, and abilities individuals need for entry into relevant occupation and advanced educational studies, and provides Newlane with recommendations on the adequacy of program structure and outcomes, curricula, and course materials.

Meet the Members of the Newlane Advisory Council:



Guillermo Rivera, PhD

Guillermo Rivera is an experienced educator and administrator. Dr. Rivera studied the pedagogy of languages at the University of Miami. After finishing his Doctorate in Philosophy at UM, he worked for several years as a Faculty member and Department Head at Doral Academy. Dr. Rivera began teaching for Doral College in 2013, and worked on the SLO Committee, the Academic Affairs committee, and the Capstone Committee. He became Faculty Chair in 2016 and Academic Dean in 2018. In July 2019, he became the Chief Academic Officer.



Robbie McClintock, PhD

Robbie McClintock lives in Princeton, NJ, and studies the cultural effects of education and technology. His interests formed as he earned his B.A. with high honors at Princeton University in 1961 and his Ph.D. at Columbia University in 1968. He served on the Johns Hopkins University faculty from 1965-67 and then

the faculty of Teachers College, Columbia University, until retiring in 2011 as the Weinberg Professor in the Historical and Philosophical Foundations of Education. Since 2011 he has published several books and essays on formative education and its cultural effects and has been developing an innovative website, A Place to Study, to support self-formation and liberal learning in the digital commons.



David Sabey, PhD

David Sabey is an educator and scholar who has taught and conducted research at the secondary and tertiary levels. He holds advanced degrees from UNLV (M.Ed. – Curriculum and Instruction), Harvard (M.Ed. – Human Development and Psychology) and Vanderbilt (PhD – Learning Science and Learning Environment Design). His areas of academic expertise include deeper learning, learning across contexts, dialogic pedagogy, and ethics in education.

Faculty

Fernando Becerra, PhD, Astronomy and Astrophysics, Harvard University

Manon Bertrand, MSc, Sociology, University of Ghent

Michelle Beauchamp, PhD, Environmental Studies, Philosophy, and Political Science, University of Victoria

Ben Blair, PhD, Philosophy and Education, Columbia University

Nelson Bolivar, PhD, Physics Universite de Lorraine

Kathryn Burrows, PhD, Sociology, Portland State University

Susan Cooke, PhD, Art History, University of Exeter

Jennifer Coon, MA, Written Communications: Teaching of Writing, Eastern Michigan University

Aley Cristelli, MA, Human and Health Services Administration, University of Oklahoma

Sarah Desroches, PhD, Integrated Studies in Education, McGill University

Amiee Flynn-Curran, PhD, Anthropology, National University of Ireland

Cecile Gallet, Masters, Information and Communication, University of Toulon

Kristin Harris, MA, Systematic and Philosophical Theology, University of Nottingham

Michelle Humphrey, MBA, Regis University

Peter Kruger, MA, Philosophy, University of Stellenbosch

Mackensie Louw, MS, Metabolic Biology and Nutritional Science, University

of California at Berkeley

Avi Mintz, PhD, Philosophy and Education, Columbia University

Sean Nowicki, MA, History, Cal State University East Bay

Patricia Sanchez, PhD, Psychology, John Jay College of Criminal Justice, Graduate Center, CUNY Kenneth Shay, EMBA, European International University Walton Wood, PhD, English, University of Florida Iris Yan, PhD, Mathematics, University of Chicago

Technology Requirements

NEWLANE Minimum Technology Requirements for students to be successful: Link to Technology Requirements on Website

Students will need access to a Windows or Mac based computer as well as a microphone, camera (these may be part of the computer, or separate devices plugged into the computer) and internet fast enough to handle streaming video for 30+ minutes. Learning can be done online or offline. Newlane recommends that students and experts use the Chrome browser to access coursework and for course hearings. Tests and counseling sessions will be conducted through video chat on the Newlane site. No third-party software is needed. It is safest to consider the learning platform on Newlane in beta for mobile devices. While tablets, smartphones and other mobile devices may allow for some completion of coursework, they are not guaranteed to work in all areas.

| Required and Recommended Technology Details | |
|---|----------------------------|
| *Computer | Recommended OS |
| Мас | 10.0 or later |
| Windows | 10.0 or later |
| For other OS, including Linux, and mobile OS, please contact contact@newlaneuniversity.com to verify that you will be able to access and progress on Newlane with your selected OS. | |
| *All computers must have a video camera and microphone (external or integrated to the computer) to be able to participate in streaming video chats. | |
| Internet | Recommended speed |
| | Hi-speed; 10mbps or higher |
| Preferred Browser | Chrome Version 75 or later |
| Processor | Recommended speed |
| | 1.3 GHz or faster |

Confidentiality and Privacy Policies

Newlane affirms that it protects student data, including student educational and administrative records and student "Personally identifiable information" ("PII") by design. Newlane University is committed to protecting your privacy in accordance with this privacy policy, which applies to the Newlane University website, the Newlane University application or platform (i.e., the Newlane University learning management system and mastery-verification system), its related websites, and content therein (collectively: "Website") as well as the services available through this Website ("Services"), and governs collection of personally identifiable information through the website.

PLEASE READ THIS PRIVACY POLICY CAREFULLY. By using the website, you give your consent to Newlane University's data practices and understand that all personally identifiable information that you submit may be processed by Newlane University in the manner and for the purposes described herein.

If you do not agree to the terms and conditions set forth herein, do not use the website.

Collection of Personal Information

To apply for admission to Newlane University ("Newlane", or the "University"), you must submit personally identifiable information to the Newlane website ("Website"). "Personally identifiable information" ("PII") refers to data that allows Newlane University to identify you, such as your name, mailing address, telephone number, date and country of birth, your image from government-issued identification, government-issued identification number, e-mail address, and other personal information.

If you submit personally identifiable information through any of Newlane's Communications Services (as described in the University's <u>Terms of Use</u>), that information may be collected and used in accordance with this Privacy Policy.

Information and How We Use It

By submitting your PII to the Website, you understand and agree that Newlane may collect, use, transfer, and disclose your personally identifiable information as described in this Privacy Policy. The Website may collect, process and use the data which includes PII, the legal basis of which is your consent, which you give when you use the Services. Types of PII that may be used include the following, without limitation:

• We may process data about your use of our Website and Services ("User Data"). User Data may include your IP address, location, type of browser and version, operating

system, referral source, visit length, page views and website navigation paths, as well as information about the frequency and timing of your use of the Service. The source of the User Data is an analytics tracking system. User Data may be processed for the purposes of analyzing the use of the Website and Services, operating our Website, improving and customizing the Services, ensuring the security of our Services, maintaining back-ups of our databases and communicating with you.

- When registering or inquiring on our Website you may be asked to enter your name, email address, mailing address, telephone number, email address, date of birth, or other details ("Entered Data"). You are the source of such account data, and such data may be processed for the purposes of operating the Website, providing the Services, ensuring the security of the Website and Services, maintaining back-ups of our databases and communicating with you. Newlane will use your Entered Data for internal purposes including, but not limited to, academic and financial advising, record-keeping and tracking.
- We may process information contained in any enquiry you submit to us regarding Services ("Enquiry Data").
- We may process information that you provide to us for the purpose of subscribing to our email notifications, offering you services, or promotions which may interest you ("Notification Data"). The Notification Data may be processed for the purposes of sending you relevant Notification Data.
- We may process information contained in or relating to any communication that you send to us ("Correspondence Data"), for example, when you sign up for our newsletter or respond to a survey or marketing communication. The Correspondence Data may include communication content and/or metadata associated with such communication. The Correspondence Data may be processed for communicating with you and record keeping.
- We may process any of the types of data described in this Privacy Policy if we are
 required to do so by court-order, any legal obligation to which we are subject, or when
 necessary, for the establishment, exercise or defense of legal claims. The legal basis for
 this processing is our legitimate interests, namely of the Website's legal rights, your legal
 rights and the legal rights of others.
- Please do not supply any other person's PII to us without the specific and explicit consent of all parties, including the owner of such PII.

International transfers of your PII

In this Section, we provide information about the circumstances in which your PII may be transferred to countries inside and outside the European Economic Area ("EEA").

You acknowledge that PII submitted by you for publication through the Services may be available around the world via the internet. We cannot prevent the use or misuse of published PII by others once you submit it for publication, nor are we liable for such third-party use or misuse.

Such use may involve transfer of personally identifiable information to servers located outside the country from which you access the Website.

We have facilities in The United States. "Adequacy decisions" of the European Commission have been made with respect to the data protection laws of the United States.

Adherence to the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) of 2018

Transfers to countries inside and outside the EEA will be protected by appropriate safeguards, namely the provisions of applicable law which relate to the protection of individuals with regards to the processing of PII to which a party may be subject including, without limitation, the General Data Protection Regulation 2018 (GDPR).

The hosting facilities for our Website are situated in The United States and Europe. The European Commission has made an "adequacy decision" with respect to the data protection laws of each of these countries. If you have opted-in and knowingly subscribe to our newsletter or other forms of correspondence, we may also use your information to inform you of new services Newlane will be providing, inform you of scholarship applications and academic programs, and send you requested information and promotional materials for marketing purposes and research.

Collection and Use of Non-Personal Information

The University automatically collects non-personal information about your computer hardware and software for the purpose of improving the administration and content of the Website, facilitating use of the University's Website by its users, and to properly diagnose server problems and other issues.

The University may contract with third party providers to assist in better understanding visitors to the Website. Third party providers are prohibited from using any information they collect on behalf of Newlane for any purpose other than helping the University conduct and improve its services to you.

Information Sharing

The University does not sell, rent or lease your personally identifiable information to third parties without your prior written consent. Personally identifiable information collected in connection with applications for admission may, however, be collected by a third-party service provider that hosts the Website, and that information is released to application reviewers who may include University employees, contractors, volunteers and other parties. These individuals are prohibited from using your personally identifiable information except in connection with Newlane services and any other products and/or services you have requested, and they are required to maintain the confidentiality of your information.

Newlane may disclose your personally identifiable information, without notice, (i) if required to do so by law, or (ii) in the good faith belief that disclosure is necessary to protect or defend the rights, system, network, property or personal safety of the University, its personnel or its students. Newlane may disclose your personally identifiable information, with prior notice, subject to your consent, to a potential or actual partner or buyer in connection with a merger, acquisition, or any form of sale of some or all of the University's assets.

The University requires opt-in consent (meaning, your express permission) to share any sensitive personally identifiable information, such as medical information or information concerning race or ethnicity, political or religious beliefs, and sexuality.

Your Rights

In this Section, we have done our best to summarize the rights that you have under data protection law. These are complex, and not all of the details have been included herein. In light of this, you should read the relevant laws and guidance from the regulatory authorities for a full explanation of these rights.

Your principal rights under data protection law are:

- the right to access;
- the right to rectification;
- the right to erasure;
- the right to restrict processing;
- the right to object to processing;
- the right to data portability;
- the right to complain to a supervisory authority; and
- the right to withdraw consent.

You have the right to confirmation as to whether or not we process your personal data and, where we do, access to the personal data, together with certain additional information. That additional information includes details of the purposes of the processing, the categories of personal data concerned and the recipients of the personal data. Providing the rights and freedoms of others are not affected, we will supply to you a copy of your personal data.

You have the right to have any inaccurate personal data about you rectified and, taking into account the purposes of the processing, to have any incomplete personal data about you completed. Newlane will also correct, amend or delete any personal information that is inaccurate and notify any third-party recipients of the necessary changes. Newlane may decline to process requests that are unreasonably repetitive or systematic, require disproportionate technical effort, jeopardize the privacy of others, are extremely impractical, or for which access is not otherwise required by local law or GDPR.

In some circumstances you have the right to the erasure of your personal data [by providing adequate evidence attesting to your identity] without undue delay. Those circumstances include: the personal data is no longer necessary in relation to the purposes for which they were

collected or otherwise processed; you withdraw consent to consent-based processing; the processing is for direct marketing purposes; and the personal data have been unlawfully processed. There are certain general exclusions of the right to erasure. Those general exclusions include where processing is necessary: [for exercising the right of freedom of expression and information; for compliance with a legal obligation; or for the establishment, exercise or defense of legal claims].

In some circumstances you have the right to restrict the processing of your personal data. Those circumstances are: you contest the accuracy of the personal data; processing is unlawful but you oppose erasure; we no longer need the personal data for the purposes of our processing, but you require personal data for the establishment, exercise or defense of legal claims; and you have objected to processing, pending the verification of that objection. Where processing has been restricted on this basis, we may continue to store your personal data. However, we will only otherwise process it: with your consent; for the establishment, exercise or defense of legal claims; for the protection of the rights of another natural or legal person; or for reasons of important public interest.

You have the right to object to our processing of your personal data on grounds relating to your particular situation, but only to the extent that the legal basis for the processing is that the processing is necessary for: the performance of a task carried out in the public interest or in the exercise of any official authority vested in us; or the purposes of the legitimate interests pursued by us or by a third party. If you make such an objection, we will cease to process the personal information unless we can demonstrate compelling legitimate grounds for the processing which override your interests, rights and freedoms, or the processing is for the establishment, exercise or defense of legal claims.

To the extent that the legal basis for our processing of your personal data is consent, and such processing is carried out by automated means, you have the right to receive your personal data from us in a structured, commonly used and machine-readable format. However, this right does not apply where it would adversely affect the rights and freedoms of others.

If you consider that our processing of your personal information infringes data protection laws, you have a legal right to file a complaint with a supervisory authority responsible for data protection. You may do so in the EU member state of your habitual residence, your place of work or the place of the alleged infringement.

To the extent that the legal basis for our processing of your personal information is consent, you have the right to withdraw that consent at any time. Withdrawal will not affect the lawfulness of processing before the withdrawal.

You may exercise any of your rights in relation to your personal data by written notice (including email) to us in addition to the other methods specified in this Section 5.

Opt-in

When you provide us with PII for a secondary reason, like marketing or other secondary reasons which we will convey to you from time to time if applicable, we will ask for your consent. After you opt-in, you may withdraw your consent anytime, by contacting us at contact@newlaneuniversity.com.

Security of your Personal Information

The University maintains reasonable measures to protect your personally identifiable information from unauthorized access, use or disclosure. The University stores the personally identifiable information you provide on computer servers in a controlled environment that has implemented protections against unauthorized access, use or disclosure. Newlane has implemented procedures to safeguard the integrity of its information technology assets, including, but not limited to, authentication, monitoring, auditing, and encryption. These security procedures have been integrated into the design, implementation, and day-to-day operations of the Website as part of University's continuing commitment to the security of electronic content as well as the electronic transmission of information.

For website security purposes and to maintain the availability of the Website for all users, the University employs software to monitor traffic and identify unauthorized attempts to upload or change information or otherwise damage the Website. When personally identifiable information (such as a credit card number) is transmitted to other websites, it is protected through the use of encryption, such as the Secure Socket Layer (SSL) protocol.

The University, however, cannot guarantee that unauthorized third parties will never be able to defeat the measures described in this section or use your personally identifiable information for improper purposes. Nothing in this Privacy Policy or in the University's <u>Terms of Use</u> shall be deemed a guarantee, contract, or warranty of any kind, whether express or implied, regarding the security of your personally identifiable information.

Adherence to The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974 was designed to protect the privacy of educational records, establish the rights of students to inspect and review their educational records, and provide guidelines for the correction of inaccurate or misleading information through informal and formal hearings. While FERPA does not apply to the University, since it is not a federally-funded institution, the University nonetheless strives to meet FERPA's provisions to the extent reasonably feasible.

The University will not disclose a student's educational record without obtaining the student's prior written consent, except that a student's educational record may be disclosed (i) to other

school officials, including teachers with a legitimate educational interest and contractors, consultants, volunteers, or other parties to whom Newlane has outsourced educational or institutional services or functions; (ii) to parents of a dependent student, as defined in section 152 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986; (iii) to accrediting organizations; (iv) in compliance with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena; or (v) for any other reason permitted under 34 CFR § 99.31.

The University depends on the accuracy of the records submitted by its students. False information on an application, or any other act to intentionally mislead or misinform instructional personnel or administrators, is grounds for disciplinary action, including dismissal from the University. Students seeking access or amendment of their educational records should contact the Office of Student Services at contact@newlaneuniversity.com

Children's Online Privacy Protection Act

Although neither this website nor any of the University's services are intended for children under 13 years of age, the University complies with the Children's Online Privacy Protection Act of 1998 ("COPPA") and does not knowingly collect any personal information online from children under the age of 13.

Use of Cookies

The Newlane Website may use "cookies", subject to your consent if you are a resident of the European Union or are subject to GDPR, to help you personalize your online experience. A cookie is a small data file that is placed on your hard disk by a web page server. The purpose of a cookie is to tell the web server that you have returned to a specific page. For example, if you personalize Website pages, or apply for admission to Newlane, a cookie helps the University recall your specific information on subsequent visits. This simplifies the process of recording your personal information, such as your name and mailing address. When you return to the Website, the information you previously provided can be retrieved, so you can more easily benefit from the Newlane features.

Cookies cannot be used to run programs or deliver viruses to your computer. Cookies are uniquely assigned to you, and can only be read by a web server in the domain that issued the cookie to you.

By using the Website, its related websites and other services, you hereby agree to the use of cookies as described herein. Note that most web browsers automatically accept cookies, but you can usually modify your browser settings to decline cookies if you prefer. If you choose to decline cookies, you may not be able to fully experience the interactive features of the Website.

Google Analytics

The University uses Google Analytics to collect information about use of the Website. The University uses the data it receives from Google Analytics to improve the Website, and does not combine the IP address collected by Google Analytics with your name or other identifying information that you may enter on the Website. Newlane cannot control Google's use of the information it gathers; however, Google's right to use and share information collected by Google Analytics about your visits to the Newlane Website is restricted by the Google Analytics Terms of Use and the Google Privacy Policy. You can prevent Google Analytics from recognizing you on return visits to this site by deleting its cookie or disabling cookies on your browser.

Your California Privacy Rights and Do Not Track Notices

California Civil Code Section 1798.83 permits customers of a company who are California residents to request certain information regarding its disclosure of personally identifiable information to third parties for their direct marketing purposes. To make such a request, please send an email to contact@newlaneuniversity.com. Please note that the University is only required to respond to one request per customer each year.

Note that the University does not respond to "Do Not Track" signals.

The Newlane Learning Platform

All of the University's courses, course hearings, assignments, course exams, the counseling services, and student and faculty forums are conducted through the Newlane learning and mastery-verification platform, an open source learning platform.

No one outside the Newlane community is permitted to access the Newlane learning and mastery-verification platform. However, the Newlane site administrators have access to nearly everything in the system and certain private information is also accessible by other Newlane students, faculty and staff:

- Newlane profile page. Every Newlane student has a profile page which contains their first and last name, Student ID number, email address (optional), profile picture (optional) and description (optional). Student first and last name is visible to all students, faculty and staff. Newlane profile pages are NOT available to the general public.
- 2. Newlane discussion forums. Anything posted in a discussion forum is visible to the instructor and to all students in that course. Your posts will include your full name and profile picture if you have chosen to upload it to the system.
- 3. Private messaging system. Only the sender and receiver can view the content of messages sent through the Newlane messaging system.

If you withdraw from the University, your account will be disabled and will no longer be visible to students and instructors. Old and inactive accounts are usually deleted after four years of nonuse.

Third Party Websites, Cookies and Privacy Policies

Certain pages of the Website may contain links to websites that are not controlled by the University. Third-party cookies may be set by websites such as YouTube, Google Plus and other social media outlets or websites for which Newlane may implement plugins. Newlane may permit other companies to place cookies and use cookies according to the university policies and in accordance with this Privacy Policy.

Third-party Providers

In general, the third-party providers used by us will only collect, use and disclose your information to the extent necessary to allow them to perform the services they provide to us. However, certain third-party service providers, such as payment gateways and other payment transaction processors, have their own privacy policies in respect to the information we are required to provide to them for your purchase-related transactions.

For these providers, we recommend that you read their privacy policies so you can understand the manner in which your personal information will be handled by these providers. In particular, remember that certain providers may be located in or have facilities that are located in a different jurisdiction than either you or us. So, if you elect to proceed with a transaction that involves the services of a third-party service provider, then your information may become subject to the laws of the jurisdiction(s) in which that service provider or its facilities are located. For example, if you are located in Canada and your transaction is processed by a payment gateway located in the United States, then your PII used in completing that transaction may be subject to disclosure under United States legislation, including the Patriot Act.

Once you leave our Website or are redirected to a third-party website or application, you are no longer governed by this Privacy Policy or our Website's Terms of Service.

Third-party Links

Occasionally, at our discretion, we may include or offer third-party products or Services on our Website. These third-party sites have separate and independent privacy policies. We therefore have no responsibility or liability for the content and activities of these linked sites. Nonetheless, we seek to protect the integrity of our site and welcome any feedback about these sites.

Age of Consent

By using this site, you represent that you are at least the age of majority in your state, province or country of residence, or that you are the age of majority in your state, province or country of residence and you have given us your consent to allow any of your minor dependents to use this site.

Retaining and Deleting PII

This Section 4 sets out our data retention policies and procedures, which are designed to help ensure that we comply with our legal obligations in relation to the retention and deletion of personal data.

We will retain and delete your personal data as follows:

PII will be retained for 25 years following the point of first contact with the University at the end of which period it will be deleted from our systems.

Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Privacy Policy, we may retain your PII where such retention is necessary for compliance with a legal obligation to which we are subject, or in order to protect your vital interests or the vital interests of another natural person.

Third-party cookies are not governed by this Privacy Policy. The University does not control and is not responsible for the privacy policies or other content on websites other than the Website, including websites linked to from the Website, or for the use of personally identifiable information that you may submit to any of those websites. The University encourages you to review the privacy policies of those third-party websites directly so that you can understand how those websites collect, use and share your information.

Changes to this Policy

This Privacy Policy may be updated from time to time. Modifications will be denoted by the "updated" notice at the top of this page. Your submission of personally identifiable information to the Website following the posting of any changes to this Privacy Policy constitutes acceptance of those changes. The University encourages you to periodically review this Privacy Policy to be informed of its policies respecting your personally identifiable information. By continuing to access the Website after notice of modifications have been published, you signify your agreement to be bound by the updated terms.

Compliance with this Policy

The University regularly reviews its compliance with this Privacy Policy. If you have any questions regarding this Privacy Policy, or believe that the University has not adhered to any of its terms, please contact the University at contact@newlaneuniversity.com.

Course/Program Listings with Program Outcomes

The Associate of Arts offers a sustained investigation into diverse fields of study including Humanities, Science, Social Science, Math, Business, and the Arts.

In order to earn a Bachelor degree, a student must complete the Associate of Arts degree (or transfer the equivalent number of credits) in addition to any major-specific required courses.

60 Semester Credit Hours

Average Completion time: 2 years

Total cost: \$1500

Program Outcomes:

- Express self clearly, accurately, and succinctly in written and spoken work.
- Be familiar with, and work effectively with different forms of inquiry and knowledge (e.g., scientific, mathematical, humanities, the arts, etc.)
- Effectively conduct and interpret findings from scientific experiments.
- Effectively conduct and interpret findings from social scientific studies.
- Effectively read and interpret involved texts from a range of disciplines.
- Demonstrate habits of successful college study.
- Describe and develop intellectual and practical skills including clear communication, quantitative reasoning, qualitative reasoning (critical, analytical, and creative thinking), and information literacy.
- Describe and develop habits of ethical reasoning and conduct, effective social responsibility, civic engagement, and global citizenship.

In order to enroll in the Associate of Arts in General Studies degree, prospective students must complete the **Newlane Basic Orientation and Jumpstart** course and a Newlane Introduction Sequence.

A Newlane Introduction Sequence is composed of any four courses from the following list:

| GE101 | KEYS OF COLLEGE SUCCESS |
|---------|----------------------------|
| ENG102 | ENGLISH COMPOSITION |
| MATH101 | COLLEGE ALGEBRA |
| BIO102 | INTRODUCTION TO BIOLOGY |
| HLTH101 | INTRODUCTION TO HEALTH |
| PHIL101 | INTRODUCTION TO PHILOSOPHY |
| | |

Completing these sequences gives students an opportunity to experience online learning across a range of academic disciplines through the Newlane platform before committing to a degree program.

The Associate of Arts degree consists of 60 semester credit hours and by completing the Associate of Arts degree, students complete the general education requirement for our Bachelor's degree, plus at least 21 elective credits. The credit requirements for different, distinct types of education and training for degrees at Newlane ensures that students engage in multiple forms of inquiry, and learn about a range of disciplines and content matter. The Associate of Arts degree is composed of 39 general education credits (see below for credit requirements across different categories) and 21 elective credits, that can be made

up from any other courses in the Associate of Arts degree or any course in the Philosophy degree for which the student has met all prerequisites.

Newlane requires 39 credits in General education, including coursework in the following categories: University experience; Communication and Information literacy; Quantitative literacy; Scientific reasoning; Social and Behavioral Sciences; and Arts and Humanities. Our introduction sequence provides a course from each of these categories. See the following for more details on the courses that pertain to these different categories:

| ASSOCIATE OF ARTS IN GENERAL STUDIES REQUIREMENTS BY CREDIT TYPE: | |
|--|----|
| GENERAL EDUCATION CREDITS | 39 |
| ELECTIVE CREDITS (These credits are made up from any other courses in the Associate of Arts degree. Students may also take courses in the Philosophy major for which they have completed all prerequisites.) | 21 |
| GENERAL EDUCATION CREDIT REQUIREMENTS BY CATEGORIES: | |
| UNIVERSITY EXPERIENCE | 3 |
| COMMUNICATION AND INFORMATION LITERACY | 6 |
| QUANTITATIVE LITERACY | 6 |
| SCIENTIFIC REASONING | 6 |
| SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES | 12 |
| ARTS & HUMANITIES | 6 |
| TOTAL | 39 |
| ASSOCIATE OF ARTS COURSES ORGANIZED BY CATEGORIES | |
| BOLD = Part of General Education Introduction Sequence | |
| INITIATION SEQUENCE 0 credit hours | |
| COURSE NUMBER COURSE NAME SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS | |

| NWLN100 | NEWLANE BASIC ORIENTATION AND JUMPSTART | 0 |
|---------------------------|--|--------------------------|
| UNIVERSITY EXPERIEN | NCE 3 credit hours | |
| COURSE NUMBER | COURSE NAME | SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS |
| GE100 | KEYS TO COLLEGE SUCCESS | 3 |
| COMMUNICATION AND | INFORMATION LITERACY minimum 6 cr | redit hours |
| Take the following two co | ourses: | |
| COURSE NUMBER | COURSE NAME | SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS |
| ENG102 | ENGLISH COMPOSITION | 3 |
| COMM101 | INTRODUCTION TO COMMUNICATION | 3 |
| QUANTITATIVE LITERA | CY minimum 6 credit hours | |
| Take two of the following | courses: | |
| COURSE NUMBER | COURSE NAME | SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS |
| MATH101 | COLLEGE ALGEBRA | 3 |
| MATH201 | INTRODUCTION TO MATHEMATICAL REASONING | 3 |
| PHIL203 | SYMBOLIC LOGIC | 3 |

SCIENTIFIC REASONING minimum 6 credit hours

Take two of the following courses:

| COURSE NUMBER | COURSE NAME | SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS |
|----------------------------|--|--------------------------|
| BIO102 | INTRODUCTION TO BIOLOGY | 3 |
| BIO101 | INTRODUCTION TO CELLULAR AND MOLECULAR BIOLOGY | 3 |
| PHYS101 | INTRODUCTION TO PHYSICAL SCIENCE | 3 |
| ASTR101 | INTRODUCTION TO ASTRONOMY | 3 |
| SOCIAL AND BEHAVIO | RAL SCIENCES minimum 12 credit hours | |
| Take four of the following | g courses: | |
| COURSE NUMBER | COURSE NAME | SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS |
| HLTH101 | INTRODUCTION TO HEALTH | 3 |
| PSYCH101 | INTRODUCTION TO PSYCHOLOGY | 3 |
| SOC101 | INTRODUCTION TO SOCIOLOGY | 3 |
| ANTH101 | INTRODUCTION TO ANTHROPOLOGY | 3 |
| POLSCI101 | INTRODUCTION TO POLITICAL SCIENCE | 3 |
| HIST202 | A HISTORY OF THE MODERN WORLD | 3 |
| HIST203 | EUROPEAN HISTORY | 3 |
| BUS101 | INTRODUCTION TO BUSINESS | 3 |

ARTS & HUMANITIES minimum 6 credit hours

Take two of the following courses:

| COURSE NUMBER | COURSE NAME | SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS |
|------------------|----------------------------|--------------------------|
| PHIL101 | INTRODUCTION TO PHILOSOPHY | 3 |
| ART101 | ART APPRECIATION | 3 |
| PHIL102 | INTRODUCTION TO ETHICS | 3 |

The Bachelor of Arts in Philosophy offers a sustained investigation and careful inquiry, analysis, and interpretation of significant works in the history of philosophy, and a deep exploration of the hallmarks of philosophy, including the nature of reality and human knowledge, the meaning of life, evil, justice, beauty, and the good life.

*Note: A Bachelor's Degree in Philosophy is comprised of at least 120 credits, including required major courses and coursework. The remainder can be made up from the required coursework for the Associate Degree, and available electives, or comparable credits. In order to enroll in Newlane University's Bachelor degree program, a student must first complete the Associate of Arts degree, or transfer the equivalent number of credits.

120 Credit Hours (this includes 60 credits that are earned with the completion of the Associate degree, or the equivalent number of transfer credits)

Average Completion time: 4 years (or 2 years in addition to the Associate degree)

Total cost: \$3000 (or \$1500 if student has already earned an Associate degree, or transfers the equivalent number of credits)

Program Outcomes:

- Rigorously evaluate ideas and arguments.
- Explain important ideas and works of prominent philosophers.
- Explain important critiques of works of prominent philosophers.
- Recount and analyze fundamental questions and propositions concerning reality, knowledge, and value.
- Competently incorporate formal reasoning techniques to articulate and evaluate arguments.
- Compare basic philosophical trends and key ideas across history.
- Outline philosophical issues in a range of intellectual domains.
- Construct coherent arguments in support of one's views.
- Present accurately and fairly views that differ from one's own.
- Write philosophical arguments, exegeses, and interpretations clearly and in an organized manner.

In order to enroll in the Bachelor of Arts in Philosophy degree, prospective students must complete the Newlane Basic Orientation and Jumpstart course, and the Introduction Sequence. Completing these sequences gives students an opportunity to experience online learning across a range of courses through the Newlane platform before committing to a degree program.

To complete Newlane's Bachelor of Arts in Philosophy degree, students must complete the general education requirement (typically through completing the Associate of Arts in General Studies degree) plus at least 30 semester credit hours including required categories and courses from the Philosophy major. The remainder of the 120 semester credit hours can be made up from available electives. Students also have the option of completing a capstone project, which counts as 6 advanced-level credits.

The credit requirements for different, distinct types of education and training for the Bachelor of Arts in Philosophy degree at Newlane ensures that students engage in multiple forms of inquiry, and learn about a range of disciplines and content matter. It also ensures that students engage in advanced study in philosophy across conventional areas (e.g., ethics, metaphysics, logic, history, epistemology, and philosophical writing).

The Bachelor of Arts in Philosophy from Newlane requires 39 credits in General education, including coursework in the following categories: University experience; Communication and Information literacy; Quantitative literacy; Scientific reasoning; Social and Behavioral Sciences; and Arts and Humanities. Our Associate of Arts introduction sequence provides a course from each of these categories. See the following for more details on the courses that pertain to these different categories:

Bachelor of Arts in Philosophy Requirements

General Education: 39 credits

Major: 30 credits

Electives: 51 credits

Note: At least fifteen (15) hours in the major must be at the 300 level.

Total: 120 credits

GENERAL EDUCATION CREDIT REQUIREMENTS BY CATEGORIES:

| UNIVERSITY EXPERIENCE | 3 |
|--|----|
| COMMUNICATION AND INFORMATION LITERACY | 6 |
| QUANTITATIVE LITERACY | 6 |
| SCIENTIFIC REASONING | 6 |
| SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES | 12 |
| ARTS & HUMANITIES | 6 |

| TOTAL | | 39 |
|--|--|-------------------------------------|
| GENERAL EDUCATION | COURSES ORGANIZED BY CATEGOR | IES |
| BOLD = Part of General | Education Introduction Sequence | |
| NITIATION SEQUENCE | 0 credit hours | |
| COURSE NUMBER | COURSE NAME | SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS |
| NWLN100 | NEWLANE BASIC ORIENTATION AND JUMPSTART | 0 |
| INDEPOST SYSTEMS | 105.0 | |
| JNIVERSITY EXPERIEN | NCE 3 credit hours | |
| COURSE NUMBER | COURSE NAME | SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS |
| | | |
| GE100 | KEYS TO COLLEGE SUCCESS | 3 |
| | INFORMATION LITERACY minimum 6 of | |
| COMMUNICATION AND | INFORMATION LITERACY minimum 6 o | |
| COMMUNICATION AND | INFORMATION LITERACY minimum 6 o | |
| COMMUNICATION AND | INFORMATION LITERACY minimum 6 courses: | credit hours SEMESTER CREDIT |
| COMMUNICATION AND Take the following two co | INFORMATION LITERACY minimum 6 dopurses: COURSE NAME | credit hours SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS |
| COMMUNICATION AND Take the following two co COURSE NUMBER ENG102 COMM101 | INFORMATION LITERACY minimum 6 of courses: COURSE NAME ENGLISH COMPOSITION INTRODUCTION TO | SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS 3 |
| COMMUNICATION AND Take the following two co COURSE NUMBER ENG102 COMM101 | INFORMATION LITERACY minimum 6 of courses: COURSE NAME ENGLISH COMPOSITION INTRODUCTION TO COMMUNICATION CY minimum 6 credit hours | SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS 3 |
| COMMUNICATION AND Take the following two co COURSE NUMBER ENG102 COMM101 | INFORMATION LITERACY minimum 6 of courses: COURSE NAME ENGLISH COMPOSITION INTRODUCTION TO COMMUNICATION CY minimum 6 credit hours | SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS 3 |

| MATH201 | INTRODUCTION TO MATHEMATICAL REASONING | 3 |
|----------------------------|--|--------------------------|
| PHIL203 | SYMBOLIC LOGIC | 3 |
| SCIENTIFIC REASONI | NG minimum 6 credit hours | |
| Take two of the following | g courses: | |
| COURSE NUMBER | COURSE NAME | SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS |
| BIO102 | INTRODUCTION TO BIOLOGY | 3 |
| BIO101 | INTRODUCTION TO CELLULAR AND MOLECULAR BIOLOGY | 3 |
| PHYS101 | INTRODUCTION TO PHYSICAL SCIENCE | 3 |
| ASTR101 | INTRODUCTION TO ASTRONOMY | 3 |
| SOCIAL AND BEHAVIO | DRAL SCIENCES minimum 12 credit hours | |
| Take four of the following | g courses: | |
| COURSE NUMBER | COURSE NAME | SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS |
| HLTH101 | INTRODUCTION TO HEALTH | 3 |
| PSYCH101 | INTRODUCTION TO PSYCHOLOGY | 3 |
| SOC101 | INTRODUCTION TO SOCIOLOGY | 3 |
| ANTH101 | INTRODUCTION TO ANTHROPOLOGY | 3 |

| POLSCI101 | INTRODUCTION TO POLITICAL SCIENCE | 3 |
|-----------|-----------------------------------|---|
| HIST202 | A HISTORY OF THE MODERN WORLD | 3 |
| HIST203 | EUROPEAN HISTORY | 3 |
| BUS101 | INTRODUCTION TO BUSINESS | 3 |

ARTS & HUMANITIES minimum 6 credit hours

Take two of the following courses:

| COURSE NUMBER | COURSE NAME | SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS |
|------------------|----------------------------|--------------------------|
| PHIL101 | INTRODUCTION TO PHILOSOPHY | 3 |
| ART101 | ART APPRECIATION | 3 |
| PHIL102 | INTRODUCTION TO ETHICS | 3 |

Bachelor of Arts in Philosophy

The Bachelor of Arts in Philosophy includes the general education requirement (i.e., 39 credits, meeting all the credit requirements from different categories of courses listed in Newlane's general education offerings) plus 30 credits within the Philosophy major, including required courses and course categories, and 51 elective credits, which can be satisfied with any Newlane course credits. Within the Philosophy major, students are required to take courses from the following categories: Logic; Philosophical Writing; History of Philosophy; Ethics; Metaphysics; and Epistemology. Of the 30 required credits, Philosophy majors must complete at least 15 credit hours from 300-level courses.

PHILOSOPHY MAJOR CREDIT REQUIREMENTS BY CATEGORY

| INTRODUCTION | 3 |
|-----------------------|---|
| LOGIC | 3 |
| PHILOSOPHICAL WRITING | 3 |
| HISTORY OF PHILOSOPHY | 6 |

| ETHICS | 3 |
|--------------|----|
| METAPHYSICS | 3 |
| EPISTEMOLOGY | 3 |
| TOTAL | 24 |

In addition to the required 24 major credits satisfying all categories listed above, students must complete 6 credits of advanced studies courses (i.e., 300+ level courses), for a total of at least 15 advanced level philosophy credits. Students are free to select any 300+ level course in the philosophy major to satisfy these credits. This brings the total major credits to 30.

Prior to enrolling in the Philosophy degree, students must complete the initiation sequence (if they haven't completed it for their Associate degree) and any courses they have not yet taken from the Philosophy major introduction sequence.

The philosophy major introduction sequence includes the following courses:

| PHIL101 INTRODUCTION TO PHILOSOPHY 3 | | | | |
|---|--|---------------------|-----------------|--|
| PHIL102 INTRODUCTION TO ETHICS | | | | |
| PHIL201 HISTORY OF ANCIENT WESTERN PHILOSOPHY 3 | | | | |
| PHIL202 HIS | PHIL202 HISTORY OF MODERN WESTERN PHILOSOPHY 3 | | | |
| PHILOSOPHY N | MAJOR COURSES BY CATE | GORY | | |
| NUMBER | TITLE | TYPE | CREDIT HOURS | |
| NWLN100 | Newlane Basic Orientation and Jumpstart | Initiation | 0 | |
| PHIL101 | Introduction to Philosophy | Introduction | 3 | |
| PHIL102 | Introduction to Ethics | Introduction/Ethics | 3 | |

| PHIL201 | History of Ancient Western Philosophy | History of Philosophy | 3 |
|---------|---|-----------------------|---|
| PHIL202 | History of Modern Western Philosophy | History of Philosophy | 3 |
| PHIL203 | Symbolic Logic | Logic | 3 |
| PHIL301 | Philosophical Writing | Philosophical Writing | 3 |
| PHIL304 | Advanced Topics: Ethics | Ethics | 3 |
| PHIL305 | Advanced Topics: Metaphysics | Metaphysics | 3 |
| PHIL306 | Advanced Topics: Epistemology | Epistemology | 3 |
| PHIL302 | Plato | Advanced Studies | 3 |
| PHIL303 | Aristotle | Advanced Studies | 3 |
| PHIL307 | Kant | Advanced Studies | 3 |
| PHIL308 | Nietzsche | Advanced Studies | 3 |
| PHIL309 | Descartes | Advanced Studies | 3 |
| PHIL310 | Aquinas | Advanced Studies | 3 |
| PHIL311 | Wittgenstein | Advanced Studies | 3 |
| PHIL313 | John Dewey | Advanced Studies | 3 |
| PHIL314 | Hannah Arendt | Advanced Studies | 3 |
| PHIL315 | Philosophy of Education | Advanced Studies | 3 |

| PHIL316 | Philosophy of Transhumanism | Advanced Studies | 3 |
|---------|--------------------------------|------------------|---|
| PHIL317 | Philosophy of Science | Advanced Studies | 3 |
| PHIL319 | Feminist Philosophy | Advanced Studies | 3 |
| PHIL399 | Philosophy Capstone Project | Capstone Project | 6 |

The 300-level courses assume the content-knowledge and skills students gain in the 100- and 200-level courses. And the expectations for projects are higher for more advanced courses (both in quality and quantity). For example, students in advanced-level courses are expected to write longer papers, and the standards for written work are higher. Course professors reference a philosophy paper course project rubric that conveys the differentiated expectations across course-levels.

Course Descriptions

Associate of Arts in General Studies

| Course Number | Course | Credit Hours | Description |
|------------------|----------------------------------|-----------------|---|
| NWLN100 | Newlane Basic Orientation and | 0 | An orientation to the Newlane learning and mastery-verification platform. |
| | Jumpstart | | |

GE100 Keys to College 3 This course is designed to prepare Success college students for the expectations of academic life. It aims to equip students with the tools needed to make their college experience a successful one. The course will cover everything from test taking skills to creating a resume. Though the text is oriented to a student in a conventional university setting, the expectations are typically similar or the same for students on the Newlane platform. This course also highlights how to navigate and make the most of your studies at Newlane University. HLTH101 Introduction to 3 Exploration of the connection between Health personal choices and health across multiple dimensions of wellness. Personalized behavior change strategies to advance health will be developed. This course provides students the opportunity to explore careers in health care. Instruction includes history of health care, in-depth study and exposure to health careers,

career planning, employability skills, terminology, ethics, wellness vs. illness,

and safety.

ENG102 English Composition 3

In this light, writing becomes a dynamic, interactive, and creative rather than a rote practice. You will also begin to value writing as a process - an admittedly difficult one - rather than a product. You will come to see that writing is an act of discovery rather than a recitation of prefabricated ideas.

Because this course is designed specifically for students in a university setting, the second unit will focus on academic writing. We will learn how to respond to an assignment or test question by using the "PWR-Writing" or "Power-Writing" Method (PWR: Pre-write, Write, Revise) while learning the ins and outs of building a solid thesis and supporting that thesis with evidence. The remaining units will focus on the minutiae of good writing practices from grammar to style to citation methodology.

Newlane University Catalog 2021-2022 www.newlaneuniversity.com

MATH101 College Algebra

3

In this course, you will study basic algebraic operations and concepts, as well as the structure and use of algebra. This includes solving algebraic equations, factoring algebraic expressions, working with rational expressions, and graphing linear equations. You will apply these skills to solve real-world problems (word problems). Each unit will have its own application problems, depending on the concepts you have been exposed to. This course is also intended to provide you with a strong foundation for intermediate algebra and beyond. It will begin with a review of some math concepts formed in pre-algebra, such as ordering operations and simplifying simple algebraic expressions, to get your feet wet. You will then build on these concepts by learning more about functions, graphing of functions, evaluation of functions, and factorization. You will spend time on the rules of exponents and their applications in distribution of multiplication over addition/subtraction.

PHIL101

Introduction to Philosophy

3

The Newlane Introduction to Philosophy is oriented around 5 key areas: The history of philosophy; Ethics; Epistemology; Metaphysics; and Logic. This course is an introduction and an overview of these different areas, but it presents enough in each field to equip you to engage philosophical texts and issues through some powerful frameworks.

BIO101 Introduction to 3 This course is detailed introduction to

Introduction to
Cellular and
Molecular Biology

This course is detailed introduction to molecular biology, including proteins, carbohydrates, lipids, and nucleic acids; water; and other compounds that make up the cell. There is a particular emphasis on the cell membrane, cellular metabolism, mitosis and meiosis, transcription and translation, and genetics and gene expression.

ANTH101 Introduction to Anthropology

3

The course begins with a basis in evolutionary theory and human variation. With this foundation, we will explore primate behavior and the fossil record to develop a better understanding of human evolution. We will discuss the archaeological record of early civilizations, the origins and use of language, and the concept of culture in the development of human societies, both extinct and extant. This class will also highlight the epistemological development of the field of anthropology and how religion, culture, and the scientific process pertains to the discipline of anthropology.

ART101 Art Appreciation 3 An introduction to the multiple aspects

of the visual arts and how to study them. In addition to explaining the creative process, this course will provide the methodology involved in the discipline of Art History. This course will cover multiple art forms, methods, media, visual elements, and principles of design. Finally, students will develop an art historical vocabulary and be able to describe, classify, and compare/contrast works of art.

ASTR101 Introduction to Astronomy

3

We invite you to come along on a series of voyages to explore the universe as astronomers understand it today. Beyond Earth are vast and magnificent realms full of objects that have no counterpart on our home planet. Nevertheless, we hope to show you that the evolution of the universe has been directly responsible for your presence on Earth today.

PHIL102

Introduction to Ethics

3

Ethics considers what constitutes moral or good behavior, and what constitutes a moral or good life. It also examines the grounds and justifications for ethical behavior, that is: why is one action moral, and another action not? What makes them moral or not?

This course engages some of the most influential thinkers and texts in the field of ethics, including Plato, Aristotle, Kant, Mill, and Arendt. You'll learn to wrestle

with the moral arguments these figures make, and compare them in light of lasting moral questions and debates. We'll also explore contemporary ethical issues in light of the frameworks articulated by these thinkers. BIO102 Introduction to Welcome to the Introduction to Biology course at Newlane! This course will give Biology you an introduction to major biological principles, including the scientific method, the biochemistry of living things, the molecular structure and function of living things, genetics, evolution, and population and community ecology.

BUS101

Introduction to Business

3

Have you ever wondered what the billionaire Warren Buffett, visionary Steve Jobs, and entrepreneur Jeff Bezos have in common? After you finish studying business practices in this course, you may discover you have many of these same qualities. This course will expose you to business terminology, concepts, and current business practices. We will help you establish a viable business vocabulary, foster critical and analytical thinking, and refine your business decision-making skills. You will acquire these skills throughout this course by simulating today's workplace. By the end of the course, you will discover how to chart your choice of career in business. Since your education should help you contribute and compete in the global business environment, we will also focus on multicultural aspects of markets and business. We will examine how the business models other countries adopt often reflect their most salient characteristics.

COMM101

Introduction to Communications

3

How did humans develop the ability to communicate? Are humans the only creatures on earth that communicate? What purpose does communication serve in our lives? Answers to these historical, anthropological, and social-scientific questions provide part of the diversity of knowledge that makes up the field of communication studies. As a student of communication, you will learn that there is much more to the field than public speaking, even though the origins of communication studies are traced back thousands of years to ancient Greek philosophers and teachers like Plato and Aristotle who were the first to systematically study and write about speech. Communication students and scholars also study basic communication processes like

nonverbal communication, perception, and listening, as well as communication in various contexts, including interpersonal, group, and intercultural.

Communication has been called the most practical of the academic disciplines. Even the most theoretical and philosophical communication scholars are also practitioners of communication, and even though you have likely never taken another communication studies class, you have a lifetime of experience communicating. This experiential knowledge provides a useful foundation and a starting point from which you can build the knowledge and practice the skills necessary to become a more competent and ethical communicator.

HIST202 A History of the Modern World

3

This course offers a survey of the major political, economic, social, and intellectual forces that have shaped the world over the course of the last two centuries. It explores the impact of pivotal events in world history, such as wars and revolutions, as well as the transformative influence of longer-term trends in technology, culture, and ideology on the development of the global human community.

HIST203 European History 3

The term "Europe" is an ambiguous one - geographically, culturally, and politically. The geographic boundaries of Europe are hazy, its population is endlessly diverse, and its constituent states morphed over centuries of rivalry, internal conflict, and invasion before it became the Europe we know today. Today we see European unity in the form of the European Union, and while

there were attempts to unify Europe by the Roman Empire, Napoleon Bonaparte, and Adolf Hitler, among

others, ultimately, the unifying factor for Europe is its diversity.

MATH201

Introduction to Mathematical Reasoning 3

The main purpose of this course is to bridge the gap between introductory mathematics courses in algebra, linear algebra, and calculus on one hand and advanced courses like mathematical analysis and abstract algebra, on the other hand, which typically require students to provide proofs of propositions and theorems. Another purpose is to pose interesting problems that require you to learn how to manipulate the fundamental objects of mathematics: sets, functions, sequences, and relations.

PHYS101

Introduction to Physics

3

This course is concerned with the description of nature – that is, the description and explanation of natural phenomena. These phenomena pertain to all classes of matter in motion or at rest. Its study also includes the different kinds of energy that interact with matter. Physics 1 also aims to explain the basic laws of nature and the most fundamental aspects of matter and energy. As an application of the various concepts learned and skills acquired, physics toys or gadgets are designed, tested and presented by the students.

POLSCI101

Introduction to Political Science

3

This is a survey introducing the main foundations and workings of government and political systems. This will include constitutions and branches of government, elections, public opinion and media, political parties and interest groups, political economy and how all of these bring about policy, both domestic and foreign. In other words, the course is about what government does about issues, how and why. We will also look at political theory, ideologies, types of regimes and what makes a successful or legitimate government or state.

PSYCH101

Introduction to Psychology

3

This course will introduce you to the fundamental principles of psychology and to the major subjects of psychological inquiry. It has been designed to not only provide you with the tools necessary for the study of psychology but to present you with a sampling of the major areas of psychology research. The course begins with a short overview of how psychology developed as an academic discipline and an introduction to a number of the principle methodologies most commonly deployed in its study. The subsequent units are arranged around broad areas of research. including emotion, development, memory, and psychopathology. We will focus on well-substantiated research and current trends within each of these categories.

| SOC101 | Introduction to | 3 | The Introduction to Sociology course |
|--------|-----------------|---|--------------------------------------|
| | Sociology | | helps students understand the |
| | | | relationship between society and |

individuals. The idea that we are all profoundly affected by the society in which we live is the guiding light of

sociology.

In this course, students will study social theory and social research, learn to think beyond their personal lives and to connect the experiences of individuals with large social structures. Topics include sociological research, socialization, crime, media, global inequality, race and ethnicity, gender and sexuality, aging, marriage and family, religion, education, government and politics, the economy, health and medicine, urbanization and the environment, and social movements.

Bachelor of Arts in Philosophy Course Credit Description Course Hours Number 0 NWLN100 Newlane Basic An orientation to the Newlane learning Orientation and and mastery-verification platform. Jumpstart

PHIL101 Introduction to The Newlane Introduction to Philosophy 3 Philosophy is oriented around 5 key areas: The history of philosophy; Ethics; Epistemology; Metaphysics; and Logic. This course is an introduction and an overview of these different areas, but it presents enough in each field to equip you to engage philosophical texts and issues through some powerful frameworks. PHIL102 Introduction to Ethics 3 Ethics considers what constitutes moral or good behavior, and what constitutes a moral or good life. It also examines the grounds and justifications for ethical behavior, that is: why is one action moral, and another action not? What makes them moral or not? This course engages some of the most influential thinkers and texts in the field of ethics, including Plato, Aristotle, Kant, Mill, and Arendt. You'll learn to wrestle with the moral arguments these figures make, and compare them in light of lasting moral questions and debates. We'll also explore contemporary ethical issues in light of the frameworks articulated by these thinkers. History of Ancient 3 This course surveys important figures in PHIL201 Western Philosophy philosophy from the emergence of philosophy in Ancient Greece, through other Presocratic philosophers. The course explores in depth some of the key ideas, theories, and frameworks of Plato and Aristotle, perhaps the two most influential philosophers of all time. We'll then explore the Hellenistic period, which followed Plato and Aristotle, and brings us to the cusp of medieval times. The course covers primary sources in

| | | | the history of philosophy from Ancient Greece to Medieval times. |
|---------|---|---|--|
| PHIL202 | History of Modern Western Philosophy | 3 | This course surveys important figures in philosophy from the Enlightenment, beginning with Descartes, and culminating in Immanuel Kant. The course covers primary sources in the history of philosophy from the dawn of the Enlightenment, through the beginning of the 19th century |

PHIL203 Symbolic Logic

3

This course covers basic symbolic logic. Students learn to write arguments in formal logic form, and to identify valid and sound arguments as well as arguments with logical fallacies. Students learn to identify and correct the logic in formal arguments, as well as informal arguments in written or spoken form.

The course introduces logic, and logical notation, and presents important terms with idiosyncratic meanings in logic (e.g. 'argument', 'valid', 'sound', etc.). The course then explores logical fallacies and truth tables and propositional and predicate logic.

Though propositional logic and predicate logic present only 1/3 of the units, together, they comprise over 75% of the workload as students learn to translate natural language into logical forms, and to prove arguments using either propositional or predicate logic. Learning logic is akin to learning a language. In order to be successful, you'll need to not just master the rules and definitions, but you'll need to get fluent at recognizing patterns, solving puzzles, and exercise your "logic" muscles.

PHIL301

Philosophical Writing

3

This course is an introduction to philosophical writing. The course involves close reading of philosophical texts, careful interpretation and explication, and the characteristics of making valid, sound, and compelling arguments.

PHIL302 Plato 3 Who was Plato? Who were his contemporaries? What questions did he pose and wrestle with? What are his important works and why have they been important before and why are they important today? Why is he a significant figure in the history of philosophy and Western culture? This course seeks to address these questions and more about one of the most important figures in the history of philosophy and Western

culture.

The course is structured to help students gain a firm grasp on the central ideas of Plato, and to have a familiarity with many of his works. An essential part of gaining such familiarity is to respond to Plato's ideas. Accordingly, the writing assignments challenge students to analyze an excerpt from a work of Plato, and to respond and carry on a conversation of sorts with Plato.

the most influential thinkers and texts in this field, including Plato, Aristotle, Kant, Mill, Nietzsche, and Arendt. We'll also explore contemporary ethical issues in light of the frameworks articulated by

these thinkers.

PHIL303 Aristotle 3 This course covers the life and works of Aristotle, one of the most important figures in the history of philosophy and Western culture.

PHIL304 Advanced Topics: 3 This course covers important figures and ideas in the philosophy of ethics or morality. The course engages some of

| PHIL305 | Advanced Topics: Metaphysics | 3 | This course covers important figures and ideas in the history of metaphysics, or the quest for discovering and identifying ultimate reality. |
|---------|----------------------------------|---|---|
| PHIL306 | Advanced Topics: Epistemology | 3 | This course covers the history, and important figures and ideas of epistemology, or how we gain and justify "knowledge". |
| PHIL307 | Kant | 3 | This course covers the life and works of Immanuel Kant, one of the most important figures in the history of philosophy. |
| PHIL308 | Nietzsche | 3 | This course covers the life and works of Friedrich Nietzsche, one of the most influential philosophers in the Western postmodern era, and one of the most controversial, convention-defying philosophers ever. Nietzsche is not an easy read, and that is in large part due to his novel, counter-current approach to many long-standing issues. But when you engage his works, and try to appreciate his fresh perspectives, he is a very rewarding writer and thinker. He opens up large vistas in a wide range of topics. We'll explore Nietzsche's idiosyncratic approach to philosophy, his heavy criticisms of other philosophers, and his novel approach to morality, epistemology, metaphysics, and aesthetics. |
| PHIL309 | Descartes | 3 | This course covers the life and works of René Descartes. |
| PHIL310 | Aquinas | 3 | This course covers the life and works of St. Thomas Aquinas, including important |

| | | | sections from Summa Contra Gentiles and Summa Theologiae. You will learn that even though Aquinas was a Medieval Dominican friar, his philosophy extends beyond Roman Catholicism and has influenced the entire western world. |
|---------|--------------------------------|---|---|
| PHIL311 | Wittgenstein | 3 | This course covers the life and works of Ludwig Wittgenstein. |
| PHIL313 | John Dewey | 3 | This course covers the life and some of the works of John Dewey. Emphasis is given to his philosophy of education, though we also discuss some of his views on ethics, and psychology. |
| PHIL314 | Hannah Arendt | 3 | This course covers the life and works of Hannah Arendt. |
| PHIL315 | Philosophy of Education | 3 | In this course, we will read together and engage some of the most influential texts in educational philosophy and practice. Having a strong background in working through these texts and through the issues we discuss related to these texts will prepare you to clearly articulate the basics of, and your position on a wide range of educational issues, tensions, and everyday educational practices. |
| PHIL316 | Philosophy of Transhumanism | 3 | An exploration of significant individuals and works in the intellectual movement of transhumanism. |

PHIL317 Philosophy of 3 This course covers key concepts in the Science philosophy of science, including scientific epistemology, scientific paradigms, and how philosophy is applied to the fields of physics and biology. In this course, we will engage some of the most influential works on philosophy of science. Feminist Philosophy PHIL319 3 Though philosophers have discussed the similarities and differences between men and women throughout Western philosophy, a distinctly feminist philosophical analysis has been employed over the last fifty years. Feminist philosophers have challenged how core notions in philosophy are construed (reason, objectivity, autonomy, and gender, for example) and they have interrogated bias and misogyny in many subfields in philosophy (the history of philosophy, epistemology, and ethics, for example). This course will introduce students to feminist philosophy by examining these feminist arguments and by considering feminist responses to some contemporary issues such as objectification, reproduction, family, prostitution, and pornography. PHIL399 Philosophy Capstone 6 The Capstone Project is an extended Project study available at the end of the Bachelor's degree program (it is not available for an Associate degree) in which students pursue independent research on a question or problem of their choice, engage with the scholarly debates in the relevant disciplines, and with the guidance of an advisor produce a substantial paper, or presentation in another media that

reflects a deep understanding of the topic.

The Newlane University degree
Capstone Project challenges students to synthesize and venture out from what they have learned across their degree course work. This does not mean that the project must incorporate ideas from each course, but it should be a more developed work than a course project that represents that the student has "digested" from a wider range of courses. The Capstone Project should not be a summary of what students have learned from their course work, but rather a new selected line of inquiry, informed by their collective course work.

PHIL399 Capstone Projects

While the Newlane Capstone Project is considered a course, and like other courses, it involves a hearing and carries credit hours, because the Capstone Project is specific to each student, and is organized around the project goals (and not lessons and learning objectives), the Capstone Project also resembles and is better understood as an extended course project.

Requirements to enroll in Capstone Project: Students must have completed all Philosophy major requirements, that is, the required 24 credits meeting all category credits in: Introduction; History; Philosophical Writing; Logic; Ethics; Epistemology; and Metaphysics prior to enrolling in the Capstone Project.

The Capstone Project is an extended study available at the end of the Bachelor's degree program (it is not available for an Associate degree) in which students pursue independent research on a question or problem of their choice, engage with the scholarly debates in the relevant disciplines, and - with the guidance of an advisor - produce a substantial paper, or presentation in another media that reflects a deep understanding of the topic.

The Newlane University degree Capstone Project challenges students to synthesize and venture out from what they have learned across their degree course work. This does not mean that the project must incorporate ideas from each course, but it should be a more developed work than a course project that represents that the student has "digested" from a

wider range of courses. The Capstone Project should not be a summary of what students have learned from their course work, but rather a new selected line of inquiry, informed by their collective course work.

Students are strongly encouraged to choose a topic in which they have some competence based on their academic work, professional experience, or exploration of future career options. The Capstone Project is both a valuable intellectual experience and also a vehicle through which students can demonstrate their research, analytical, and writing/presentation skills to either prospective employers or graduate and professional schools.

Note: Completion of a Capstone Project is an option for the Bachelor's degree, but it is not required for the Bachelor's degree, and it is not available for the Associate degree.

Capstone Framework & Guidelines

A Capstone Project must demonstrate the following characteristics. Each characteristic can be satisfied in different ways depending on the topic, discipline, and the approach taken. But, taken together, they represent the capstone framework.

Originality: You must reach your own deep understanding of a clearly defined and focused topic. You must formulate your own perspective on an issue and draw your own conclusions. The final project and form of presentation can also draw upon your originality and creativity.

Independence: Although you will have a capstone advisor as a guide and domain expert, you will work primarily on your own.

Appropriate Scope: The Capstone Project is equivalent to a six-credit course at the advanced level. Therefore, you should plan to spend at least as much time and energy on your Capstone Project as you have devoted to your most challenging courses. For reference, the word count expectations for an advanced level written course project is 2500 words. So a rough expectation for a written Capstone Project would be 5000 words. But word count may not apply, depending on your project, and even in a written project, word count is not the central criterion.

As a project equivalent to a six-credit course, the Capstone Project should be within a limited and realistic scope (for example, most courses at Newlane are 3 credits, you should expect to complete your Capstone Project within the same time frame that you would complete two courses--this is not a book-length project, neither is it a project like other course projects. During the outline phase of the Capstone Project, you'll work with your faculty advisor to determine an appropriate scope for the project.

Orderly & Objective Process of Inquiry: The Capstone Project demonstrates your facility with the methods of inquiry. These include the ability to ask the right questions, to synthesize ideas, to identify and use evidence, to draw and support conclusions, to

recognize compelling research, to communicate your ideas, or to solve a problem using a specific set of tools.

Intellectual Stretch: The Capstone Project should take you to a place where you have not been before, and perhaps did not even think you could reach.

Capstone Project Learning Outcomes:

While Capstone Projects vary in terms of the content, media, framework, etc. All Capstone Projects must reflect the following learning outcomes:

| Integrate and apply degree coursework learning in a concrete way on a topic of |
|--|
| personal, academic, or professional interest. |
| Showcase mastery of degree aims relevant to the project. |
| Conduct self-guided research, including sourcing, evaluating, and responding to |
| resources appropriate to the topic and scope of the project. |
| Appropriately draw and support conclusions. |
| Connect degree studies (content, frameworks, competencies, etc.) to "next landing" |
| whether that is academic, professional, etc. |
| Create and present a tangible product for a public audience. |

Checkpoints for completion: The Capstone project includes the following checkpoints to ensure you get proper feedback from your Capstone advisor while the project is in progress, and so you don't spend an inordinate amount of time on a project, only to find out that it was ill-conceived, or not appropriate for one reason or another. See the Newlane Capstone Project Checkpoints Form.

Proposal: The proposal is the first checkpoint. At this stage, you will meet with an advisor who will help you determine an appropriate topic (related to both your major and your interests for the project) and scope for your project (e.g., that it would be appropriate for six credit hours of advanced study, etc.).

Outline: The outline is the second checkpoint. While you don't need to have your whole project figured out at this stage, you'll check in with an advisor to verify that your proposed project is appropriate for a Capstone Project (in terms of the questions asked, the subject matter, scope, etc.), and how you anticipate conducting research and bringing your project to a conclusion.

Rough Draft: The Rough Draft is the third checkpoint. As a rough draft, it is entirely expected that some sections of your project will not be complete, and that you won't have put final touches on the project, but the rough draft should include one or more section that is nearing completion so that your faculty advisor can gauge your ability to conduct appropriate research, pose and respond to appropriate questions, and work towards conclusions appropriate for a Capstone Project. The rough draft should

be include considerably more content than the outline, and should give the faculty advisor a rough idea of the directions you'll be taking toward your final project.

Draft for Final Feedback: The Draft for Final Feedback is the fourth checkpoint. At this point, the project should be nearing completion. The advisor feedback may include feedback on formatting (e.g., for a written project, this may be feedback on the works cited, bibliography, page numbering, etc.) or substantive critiques on sections of the project, etc.. This may mean that you'll need to re-work sections of your project, or make formatting changes, etc. before submitting your final project.

Final Draft: The final draft is the final checkpoint, and brings in an additional Newlane faculty member to review the project. There will still be feedback, and possible critiques of the project, including the possibility that the project will not yet be accepted as fulfilling the criteria of a Capstone Project, depending on the shape the project has taken from the previous draft, how you have responded to earlier feedback, and also fresh perspectives from the additional faculty member. The aim of the different checkpoints, including the final checkpoint, is to help the student better understand and engage the standards and conventions of academic work.

Capstone Hearing: The purpose of a Capstone Hearing at Newlane University is to review a Capstone Project. The Capstone Hearing is a meeting where the student author of the project meets with two or more referees to discuss the project. The capstone hearing follows the structure of the <u>Capstone Hearing Form</u>. At the end of the hearing, the referees make a judgment on the project, determining whether or not it is approved, and if any changes are required.

What Comes Next? A final approved Capstone Project will have been vetted by more than one faculty member, and demonstrates your expertise and ability to work independently on a project with appropriate scope. Students may consider using their Capstone Project as a launchpad, talking point, or writing (or creative) sample for graduate work, or may consider reaching out to appropriate forums (journals, exhibit spaces, etc.) for publication.

To get started on a Capstone Project, contact the Newlane Director of Education (ben@newlaneuniversity.com) who can connect you with an appropriate advisor and provide you with the right forms.

Admission Criteria

Initial Admissions & Enrollment Criteria

In order to be considered for admission to Newlane University as a registered, provisionally-enrolled student, prospective students must meet the following criteria:

- Student must be at least 18 years of age.
- Student must verify that they have completed secondary school (high school) or equivalent.

- Student must be able to speak English at a secondary school level or higher.
- Students must have access to a computer with a camera and microphone, and internet fast enough to handle live video conferences (30+ minutes).
- Student must upload government ID.
- Student must agree to the Newlane User Agreement.
- Student must pay a registration fee.

In order to be considered for enrollment at Newlane University for the Associate of Arts degree or the Bachelor of Arts degree, prospective enrolled students must meet the following additional, or enhanced criteria from the initial admissions criteria:

- Students for whom English is a second language must meet our English proficiency standards.
- Student must meet our residency requirements.
- Student must have completed the initiation and introduction sequences* for their selected degree.
- Student must apply to their selected degree program.

*Once a student is admitted to Newlane, in order to enroll in a degree program, they must complete the initiation sequence (an orientation course) and introduction sequence (four regular courses) for their selected degree. Completing these sequences gives students an opportunity to experience the rigor of Newlane courses, and online learning through the Newlane platform before committing to a degree program. The courses in these sequences are different for the Associate and Bachelor's degree. Moreover, students need not repeat a course for the Bachelor's degree if they have previously completed it during the Associate degree. To learn more about the Newlane degree programs, including the initiation and introduction sequences, please visit the degree programs page.

See our Admissions Process here.

Newlane offers rolling enrollment. Once a student satisfies all the admissions and enrollment criteria, they can enroll in a program at any time, and complete their coursework at their own pace and schedule, provided it meets the minimum satisfactory academic progress schedule.

English Proficiency Standards

At Newlane University, we accept any of the following as evidence of a non-native-English speaker's English proficiency:

- A minimum score of 500 on the paper-based Test of English as a Foreign Language (TOEFL PBT), or 61 on the Internet Based Test (iBT), a 6.0 on the International English Language Test (IELTS), or 44 on the Pearson Test of English Academic Score Report. Or A high school diploma and transcript completed at an accredited/recognized high school where the medium of instruction is English.
- 2. A minimum score on the College Board Accuplacer ESL Exam Series as follows:

a. ESL Language Use: Score of 85

b. ESL Listening: Score of 80c. ESL Reading: Score of 85

d. ESL Sentence Meaning: Score of 90

e. ESL Writeplacer: Score of 4

- f. Comprehensive Score for all exams of 350
- 3. A minimum grade of Pre-1 on the Eiken English Proficiency Exam;
- A minimum B-2 English proficiency level identified within the Common European Framework of Reference (CEFR) standards and assessed through various ESOL examinations, including the University of Cambridge;
- 5. A transcript indicating completion of at least 30 semester credit hours with an average grade of "C" or higher at an institution accredited by an agency recognized by the United States Secretary of Education and/or the Council for Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA), or accepted foreign equivalent that is listed in the International Handbook of Universities where the language of instruction was English. A "B" or higher is required for master's degree, first professional degree, or professional doctoral degree.

Satisfactory Academic Progress Policy

Newlane Satisfactory Academic Progress Policy

Link to Satisfactory Academic Progress Policy on website

Newlane University monitors students' progress through the associate and bachelor's degree program in accordance with its Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP) policy. This policy applies to all students and is not affected or altered by accepted transfer credits. Courses taken as part of the introduction sequence are considered in SAP calculations.

To maintain Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP), students must meet the following standards:

1. Qualitative Standard: Mastering Course Goals and Objectives

Students must demonstrate mastery of course goals and objectives for each course attempted, in accordance with the University grading policy. Students must demonstrate clear, accurate, thorough, and detailed mastery of course goals and objectives by earning a Pass: Full Mastery.

2. Quantitative Standard: Progress Pace

Students must complete at least 12 semester credit hours per year (minimum 3 semester credit hours per quarter) and must complete their degree program within a maximum of six years from their enrollment date.*

*This maximum time frame is applicable to both the Associate of Arts in General Studies (60 semester credit hours) and Bachelor of Arts in Philosophy (60 semester credit hours, degree completion only). Students enrolling in the bachelor's degree program must have already earned an associate degree from an appropriately accredited institution or request transfer of 60 semester credit hours.

SAP Monitoring

The Student Support Director monitors satisfactory academic progress and informs students of their progress status monthly by email.

- Students who complete at least one 3 semester credit hour course per quarter and remain on pace to complete their program in a maximum of six years are in good standing.
- Students who do not complete at least one 3 semester credit hour course per quarter are subject to Academic Warning unless they request and receive approval for a Leave of Absence.

• Students who have not met annual completion pace requirements for any enrollment year (completion of less than 12 semester credit hours) are subject to the following:

Academic Warning

Students who do not complete 12 semester credit hours annually (a minimum of one 3-semester credit hour course per quarter) based on monthly monitoring or failed to complete 12 semester credit hours in the prior year but are still on pace to graduate within six years are subject to Academic Warning. Students receive an email notifying them that they are not on pace to meet annual completion pace requirements and receive recommended support options (see below). Monthly, students who are not making progress receive escalating warnings and support recommendations. Monthly Academic Warning notifications provide an early warning mechanism to inform students of their SAP and are not appealable. Students remain on Academic Warning status until they regain satisfactory progress. If students do not return to good standing after one year on Academic Warning, they are subject to Academic Probation.

Academic Probation

Students who do not meet satisfactory academic progress requirements at the conclusion of one year (as defined above) are subject to academic probation. Monthly, students receive an email notifying them that they are subject to Academic Probation and receive required support options based on students' needs (see below). Students have six months to return to satisfactory academic progress, or they may be subject to academic dismissal.

Students may appeal an Academic Probation decision if there are extenuating circumstances that affected students' ability to meet SAP standards, which includes personal or family critical illness (both physical and mental), natural disaster impacting the student or family's home, assault, etc. If an appeal is approved, students are placed on Academic Warning for six months.

To appeal, students must complete the <u>SAP Appeal Form</u>, which allows them to explain the extenuating circumstances and submit supporting documentation. The Educational Records and Student Experience Committee reviews all SAP Appeal Forms submitted. This committee considers whether further documentation is needed or whether the justification for the appeal is reasonable. SAP decisions by this committee are final.

Academic Dismissal

Students who do not complete at least one 3 semester credit hour course in a year, have not completed at least 30 semester credit hours in a three-year timeframe, failed to complete their program within six years, or failed to regain SAP during an academic probation period are subject to Academic Dismissal. Students have three months to appeal an Academic Dismissal decision by completing the SAP Appeal Form. If an appeal is approved, students are placed on Academic Probation for six months. Students who are dismissed for not meeting SAP standards, must re-apply and be admitted under the admission requirements and catalog in place at that time. Additionally, students applying for re-admission must also provide a narrative explanation regarding how their circumstances have changed to ensure success in program completion.

Academic Support

Students on Academic Warning are encouraged to take advantage of the following support measures. Students on Academic Probation must participate in the following support measures, as part of an Academic Recovery Plan developed in consultation with their advisor.

- 1. **Guided Courses**: Students meet with a professor and counselor once a week for 4-6 weeks to complete the course within one quarter.
- 2. **Accountability Check ins**: Students meet once a week for 4-6 or more weeks with a counselor, and during each meeting, report on their progress from the previous week, and commit to taking specific steps toward completing coursework by the following week.
- 3. **Quarterly Counselor Check ins**: Students meet with a counselor to discuss and plan to complete their course work in a timely manner. All students who have not participated in a Guided Course or Accountability Check-in during the past three months, or have not passed a course in the past three months, must participate in a Quarterly Counselor Check-in.

I understand and accept Newlane University's qualitative and quantitative standards of satisfactory academic progress, including the mastering course goals and objectives, and the pace and time to graduate criteria. I understand that I must meet BOTH standards to meet satisfactory academic progress. I understand that I can appeal any negative satisfactory academic progress judgments (i.e., Academic Probation or Academic Dismissal), and my appeal will be reviewed by the Educational Records and Student Experience Committee, whose decision is final. [Student initial]

AGREE TO BE CONTACTED TO HELP MAKE SATISFACTORY ACADEMIC PROGRESS

I understand and agree that once I enroll in a Newlane University degree program, I may be contacted in multiple ways throughout my enrollment to help me make satisfactory academic progress toward completing my degree program. [Student initial]

Transfer Credits

Newlane University accepts credit from accredited postsecondary institutions toward a degree at Newlane University.

Newlane University accepts a maximum of 75% of the credits required to complete a degree program to be transfer credits. Newlane University accepts a maximum of 25% of the required major credits to be transfer credits. Transfer credit may be considered for partially or fully satisfying the credit requirements for one or more general education categories, as determined by the transfer credit evaluator. Transfer credit is not accepted toward completion of a Capstone Project. If Newlane accepts one or more transfer credit(s), this will be documented as "Transfer Credit(s)" on your Newlane transcript. Accepted transfer credit will be counted toward degree credit requirements, but will not be considered for documenting student mastery of degree outcomes (aims, goals or objectives).

Advanced Placement or CLEP (College-Level Examination Program) exams less than five years old with scores of three and above may also be considered for credit.

Courses designated as Approved Quality Curriculum (AQC) or American Council on Education (ACE) recommended may also be considered for credit.

Vocational or recreational courses may be considered for transfer credit, so long as they meet the other standards of Newlane's transfer credit policy. Such courses are typically considered only for elective credit, unless the reviewer determines that a given course reasonably satisfies some credit requirements for either a general education or major category. In such cases the reviewer will document the rationale for considering one or more vocational or recreational course to help satisfy either general education or major credit requirements.

Pass/Fail courses may be considered for transfer. Such decisions are determined on a case by case basis.

Newlane does not consider transfer credits for courses to which no credit was assigned.

For more information regarding transfer credit, students are encouraged to contact the Chief Academic Officer Ben Blair (ben@newlaneuniversity.com)

Transfer Credit Guidelines

The information recorded on the transfer credit evaluation becomes part of the student's permanent record at Newlane University. Credits must meet the following requirements to be transferable:

- For credits to be transferable, they must be earned from an appropriately accredited college, university, or training institution which has received A.C.E. (American Council on Education) recommendation for college credit (or other similarly accredited institutions in other countries).
- Only transcripts in English will be considered for transfer credit. Newlane does not offer translation services, but may consider an official transcript that has been translated by a certified agent.
- Newlane University accepts only grades of "C" or higher for transfer credit.
- Due to advances in technology and changes in laws, some credits older than 3 years may not be transferable.

*All credits are subject to review by the Chief Academic Officer and may be approved or denied at their discretion.

The student is responsible for requesting official transcripts from their previous college(s). Only official transcripts will be evaluated for possible transfer credits. Exceptions may be made if the school where the credits were earned is no longer a going concern, or can't be reached, or if obtaining an official transcript is prohibitively difficult (e.g., the cost to obtain the transcript is prohibitively expensive, physical appearance on campus is required and the student no longer resides near the school, etc.) Such exceptions are reviewed and documented by the Chief Academic Officer and may be approved or denied at their discretion.

The Newlane University official transcript lists the name of the institution from which the transfer courses come, the names of the transferred courses, and number of transfer credits awarded. Transfer grades are not included in the Newlane University transcript.

To apply for transfer credit, please provide the following:

- An official transcript from the institution where credits were earned. You may submit your unofficial transcripts while waiting for the official ones to arrive in order to expedite the evaluation process. Download a transcript request form.
- Once your transfer credit evaluation is completed, an admissions advisor will provide you with a
 degree plan that outlines the courses for which you have earned transfer credit and those you will
 still need to complete to earn your degree.

Life Experience and Transfer Credits

Newlane University does not currently award transfer credit for experiential learning. Most Newlane University students bring tremendous life experience and knowledge to the classroom—knowledge that may have been acquired both in and outside of the traditional classroom setting. We value any knowledge and mastery students have gained, regardless of how or where they gained it. While Newlane University does not have a straight line life experience transfer credit option, students may review course goals and objectives to determine which they have mastered through their life experience and test out of a course by demonstrating mastery of the course goals and objectives by completing the course exam, project, and hearing.

Transfer Credit Disclosure Statement

Accepting course credit is up to the receiving institution. Newlane University cannot guarantee that credits earned through Newlane University can or will transfer to another institution. It is the student's responsibility to determine whether credits, degrees, or certificates from Newlane University will transfer to other institutions or meet employers' training requirements. Likewise, acceptance of credit transfers from other institutions to Newlane University is determined by Newlane University, in its sole discretion. If you would like to request that Newlane University review credits that you earned at a different institution for possible transfer to Newlane, please email: ben@newlaneuniversity.com

Grading Policies

All Newlane University degree programs are competency-based. This means that passing a course is just a matter of demonstrating that you have mastered all the course goals and objectives (or intended learning outcomes), and is not tied to time in the course, or any other factor. In order to pass a course, students must demonstrate mastery of all course goals and objectives as determined by a course professor by completing a course project, a computer-scored exam and a course hearing—the course hearing is an oral exam with an expert in a video conference through the Newlane platform.

When a student submits a project, Newlane provides prompt, fair, and consistent feedback, including whether the project is approved or not yet, and whether a student has passed a course or not.

Prompt: When a student submits a project, a Newlane course professor (note: all faculty members eligible to review a project or host a course hearing hold an advanced degree in a relevant field for the course) confirms with the student within two business days that they (the faculty member) agree to review it and they inform the student when they (the student) can expect to receive feedback (within one week).

When a student participates in a course hearing, the hosting course professor provides feedback at the end of the hearing, including whether the student has passed the course or not yet.

Fair and Consistent: In order to assess fairly and consistently, Newlane faculty explicitly agree to base their grading determination exclusively on the student's demonstrated mastery of the course goals and objectives as they are currently stated and not on anything else. Newlane professors use rubrics to evaluate student mastery on course projects and in course hearings. In order for a student's project to be approved, the course professor must determine that the project fully meets all the rubric criteria for the project. In order for a student to pass a course hearing, the course professor must determine that the student has demonstrated mastery of all the course goals and objectives (the course hearing rubric and script make it straightforward for the course professor to make this determination).

In assessing student mastery of learning outcomes (i.e., degree aims, course goals, or lesson objectives) Newlane professors agree to reference the following grading standards:

Clear: a student's response must be unambiguous as pertains to the degree aim, course goal, or learning objective.

Accurate: a student's response must be correct as pertains to the degree aim, course goal, or learning objective.

Thorough: a student's response must fully address the degree aim, course goal, or learning objective (though it need not extend beyond the degree aim, course goal, or learning objective).

Detailed: a student's response must contain appropriate examples or details. For example, a student's response to a question about the objective "Explain the process of photosynthesis." while a response like: "Photosynthesis is the process whereby plants consume light and carbon dioxide and give off oxygen" may be accurate and thorough, and appropriately detailed at the primary and secondary school levels, further details are expected at the undergraduate level. If a student provided this response, the faculty member would ask probing follow-up questions to ensure the student can provide a detailed response to reflect thorough knowledge of the topic.

If the course professor determines that the student has mastered all course goals and objectives, they select "APPROVE" the student for demonstrating full mastery of the course goals and objectives, or in other words, they approve the student for passing the course. The student's educational record for that course is updated to PASS: FULL MASTERY. If the course professor determines that the student has not yet mastered all course goals and objectives, they select "NOT YET", and the student's record for that course remains as not passed.

In degree or course hearings, faculty evaluators use a rubric to help them evaluate student mastery. In order for a student to be approved to pass a course or degree, they must satisfy the evaluator(s) in the hearing that their responses reflect a level 5, as described in the rubric below. This rubric is flexible by design, and it is framed by the agreement the professor makes to attend exclusively to the learning outcomes as currently stated in evaluating student mastery in degree or course hearings. One of the important features of the Newlane platform is that it is structured around clearly articulated, measurable learning outcomes, enabling and facilitating this flexibility. See rubric below:

Degree/Course Hearing Rubric:

APPROVED 5: Student responses are accurate, thorough, and appropriately detailed (e.g., with relevant specific examples or dates, etc.) as pertains to the full statement of the goals or objectives for this course and course level; If the student did not initially answer accurately or thoroughly, or with enough detail about a given objective or goal, upon further questioning, their responses demonstrate accurate, thorough, and appropriately-detailed mastery of the course objective/goal.

NOT YET 4: Student responses are *mostly* accurate, thorough, and appropriately detailed as pertains to the full statement of the goal or objective for this course and course level, but contained minor inaccuracies, or minor gaps in mastery over some part of the course goals or objectives; If the student did not initially answer accurately or thoroughly, or with enough detail about a given objective or goal, upon further questioning, their responses continued to demonstrate inaccuracies, or gaps in mastery for one or more goal or objective.

NOT YET 3: Student responses are *somewhat* accurate, thorough, and detailed as pertains to the full statement of the goal or objective for this course and course level, but not enough to warrant further questioning about one or more course goal or objective.

NOT YET 2: Student responses are inaccurate and/or reflect only partial mastery of one or more course goal or objective.

NOT YET 1: Student responses are mostly or entirely irrelevant to the course goals and objectives.

Accordingly, Newlane does not provide letter grades, but rather rigorously verifies and documents student mastery of all course goals and objectives before approving a student to pass a course (or degree).

Course extensions and Incomplete grades: Since Newlane courses are self-paced, there is no timeline or due date for assignment submissions, or for scheduling or completing course hearings (outside of satisfactory academic progress quantitative standard related to time to graduate). This means that there are no course extensions, or incomplete grades offered through Newlane.

Student Code of Conduct and Grounds for Dismissal

Newlane University is a community of learners committed to maintaining an environment that encourages personal and intellectual growth. It is a community with high standards and high expectations for those who choose to become a part of it, including established rules of conduct intended to foster behaviors that are consistent with a civil and educational setting. Members of the University community are expected to comply with all laws and University policies, conducting themselves in ways that support a scholarly environment, and reinforce the integrity of the platform in rigorously and reliably verifying mastery. Specifically, members of the Newlane community agree to adhere to the following core values: Be inclusive; Be considerate; Be respectful; Commit to Academic integrity; Don't harass; and Make differences into strengths. You can learn more about our code of ethical conduct in your student handbook.

Please note that behavior plausibly meant to deceive another member of the university about your identity (e.g. submitting someone else's writing or work as your own (i.e., plagiarism), having someone else complete your work, or completing someone else's work, or having someone stand in for you in a degree or course hearing, or standing in for someone in a degree or course hearing), and/or any other behavior plausibly meant to cheat the platform in any assessment or project are grounds for dismissal. Also, inappropriate conduct such as racist, sexist, hate or other inflammatory speech or behavior directed towards Newlane University counselors, proctors or experts during assessments or counseling sessions are also grounds for dismissal. Furthermore, those engaging in inappropriate speech (see above) towards other students or counselors, proctors, or experts may be dismissed.

Complaint/Grievance Policy

Complaint/Grievance Policy:

Newlane University is committed to providing a learning environment that champions and exhibits high standards for education, including clear expectations, rigorous verification of mastery of learning goals and objectives, fair and equitable assessment processes, and ethical business practices. The University's complaint/grievance policy addresses scenarios where students or other community members may feel underserved, or that the university is in violation of Utah's Postsecondary Proprietary Schools act, or accreditation standards of Accreditation Services of International Schools, Colleges, and Universities (ASIC), or United States federal law, and a clear process for resolution.

Disputes about the outcomes of course project reviews, or course hearings, and similar academic disputes do not fall under the complaint/grievance policy, unless they are complaints of a civil rights nature, including complaints related to discrimination based on age, sex, race, religion, color, ethnic/national origin, disability, sexual orientation, or veteran status. Student allegations of discrimination are grounds for initiating a grievance.

Procedure:

Informal Resolution: Community members, including students, faculty and staff, are encouraged to attempt first to resolve complaints under this policy informally with the individual(s) against whom they have the complaint/grievance. If the grievant is uncertain who the appropriate individual is, they should contact the Chief Academic Officer. This informal resolution step does not require communication or notification of any other Newlane personnel beyond the individual against whom the grievant has the complaint. If the attempt for an informal resolution is unsuccessful, or unsatisfactory, the grievant is encouraged to attempt to resolve the complaint through mediation.

Mediation: Only after the complaint has either given reasonable time for the individual against whom they have the complaint to respond to a request for an informal resolution (no less than five working days) or is not satisfied with the response to the request, should the grievant move to this step. At this step, the grievant must contact the Chief Academic Officer and request a mediation. The Chief Academic Officer will discuss the option of mediation with the grievant and any involved parties. If all involved parties agree to mediation, the University will appoint a mediator to attempt to work with the involved parties to resolve the matter. If, during the mediation, the parties reach a resolution, the mediator will document the resolution and share it by sending an email including the agreed-upon resolution to all parties involved and the Chief Academic Officer.

Formal Resolution: If the issue is not resolved through the previous steps, the grievant may elect to initiate the formal complaint process by completing the <u>Complaint Form</u>, updated to reflect the grievant's dissatisfaction with previous resolution attempts, and delivering it to the Chief Academic Officer. The Chief Academic Officer has 10 working days from receipt of the Form to form a Complaint Committee of at least three members total (including the Chief Academic Officer). If the complaint involves a faculty member or staff member or administrator,

this committee requests a response to the complaint from the individual in question to be submitted within 5 working days from the time the Complaint Committee is formed.

The Complaint Committee has 10 working days from receipt of the faculty member/administrator response to share a written decision, including any necessary follow up or enforcement actions to be taken, and a timeline for these to take place, with the grievant and the individual(s) against whom the grievant has the complaint. The Complaint Committee may convene an additional faculty panel to advise on this decision.

If, after 10 working days from receipt of the faculty member/administrator response, the Complaint Committee deems it impossible to achieve a satisfactory resolution between the parties, the grievant can choose to close the matter or file a formal complaint. If the grievant is unsatisfied with the Complaint Committee's decision, they can choose to close the matter or file a formal complaint.

If a satisfactory resolution cannot be reached at the institutional level, or a community member wishes to file a complaint, they can file the complaint to the Utah Consumer Protection Services at: consumerprotection@utah.gov | 160 East 300 South Salt Lake City, UT 84111 | Phone: 801-530-6601

Student Identity Verification

Verifying Identity at Newlane

Because of our ability to meet frequently in live video conferences where we store a student's government-issued ID together with a growing string of images (with a new image of the student captured during each live session), the degree of our security is stronger than conventional measures in typical colleges and universities. Moreover, it is very unlikely that someone who has not mastered all the objectives of a course would pass a course at Newlane. This is often not the case in conventional colleges and universities—they are either ambiguous about the objectives, or they don't really hold students to them.

The steps to verifying your identity at Newlane include the following:

- Counselor reviews image of government-issued ID (must include a picture) at registration. This
 image remains part of your student record.
- Counselor reviews image of Second Form of government-issued ID. This image also remains part
 of your student record.
- Signed Student Identity Statement (included in enrollment agreement)
- Signed Student Academic Integrity Statement (included in enrollment agreement)
- Verbal Agreement to Student Identity and Integrity Statements
- Verify Student against government-issued picture ID

Details on these steps are included below:

In order to get started at Newlane, you'll first need to verify your identity. This will also result in the creation of your student ID profile. In order to verify your identity, you'll need to have two forms of government ID with you, at least one must have a recent picture. This can be a passport, a driver's license, or another form of government-issued ID with a picture. The other form of government ID does not need to have a picture (thought it's fine if it does), but it still must be government-issued (e.g. a social security card, a birth certificate, etc.) If you don't have these documents with you currently, you can submit them later, but you cannot enroll for credit in any course or degree without these.

Once you have gathered the requisite government-issued IDs, you'll meet with a counselor. The counselor will walk you through the identity verification process: The counselor will take a picture of you. The counselor will compare your government IDs with your current appearance. They will ask you to sign the student agreements, and to verbally agree to them (they will record this). As you meet with counselors and experts at Newlane as you work through your coursework, they will (with your permission) take additional pictures that will comprise a collection of images attesting to your identity over time on your student record. For example, every time you have a course hearing, the expert in the hearing will review the images attesting to your identity, and add to it by taking an additional picture for each course hearing.

Signed student agreement(s):

Identity:

I verify that I am who I am presenting myself to be, and that I, and I alone will conduct all required coursework for which I am responsible for any course in which I enroll at Newlane.

Academic Integrity:

I affirm my commitment to the standards of academic integrity in the Newlane community. I will be honest and truthful and will strive for personal and platform integrity -- that I will be honest in my purported identity and I pledge to uphold the integrity of the platform so that it can be trusted to validate mastery by the individuals purporting to have mastered learning content. I will abide by the Academic Honor Policy at all times. I recognize that in submitting any project, taking any test, quiz, or exam of any kind at Newlane, I am implicitly affirming this pledge:

"On my honor I have neither given nor received unauthorized aid on this academic work, nor am I aware of others doing so."

This comprises the process for initially verifying your ID at Newlane. We'll update it on occasion by adding additional profile pictures that administrators capture as you participate in tutoring sessions, project reviews and course hearings.

Non-Discrimination Policy

Newlane University welcomes any student who meets our admissions criteria.

We are committed to a university environment that supports, inspires, and respects all individuals and in which passing courses and completing programs are merit-based and applied without discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy and gender identity), sexual orientation, political affiliation, marital status, age, disability, national or ethnic origin, military service status, citizenship, or other protected characteristic.

Newlane condemns and will not tolerate any conduct calculated to intimidate, harass, or otherwise discriminate against any student on the grounds listed above. Any student who feels that their rights have

been violated under this policy should inform Newlane by writing to contact@newlaneuniversity.com, or another member of the leadership team and can complete the applicable form (optional).

Graduation Requirements

In order to graduate from a Newlane degree program, students must complete the following:

- Complete and execute an enrollment agreement.
- Pass all required coursework and credit hours for enrolled degree.
- Complete the Intent to Graduate Form.
- Pass the degree hearing for enrolled degree.
- Pay \$1500 in total tuition per degree.

Degree Time Requirements

Minimum Time Requirements

Students must spend a minimum of one year as a registered student with Newlane prior to earning a degree.

Maximum Time Requirements

The maximum time allowed to earn a degree through Newlane is 6 years per degree. See the Newlane Satisfactory Academic Progress Policy for more information on maximum time to earn a degree.

Academic Integrity Standards and Policies

Plagiarism and cheating are not tolerated by Newlane University, and students involved in such activities are subject to disciplinary action. Specifically, plagiarism is defined as: "the use, whether by paraphrase or direct quotation, of the published or unpublished work of another without full and clear acknowledgment".

Cheating is summarized as follows: "the giving or receiving of unauthorized assistance on quizzes, examinations or written assignments from any source not approved by Newlane or its Faculty." Cheating occurs when a student attempts to get academic credit in a way that is dishonest, untrustworthy, irresponsible, or unfair. Cheating misrepresents a student's knowledge and abilities, and undermines an expert's ability to honestly and fairly assess student knowledge and mastery of learning objectives, or an expert's ability to honestly and fairly assess whether a student has fulfilled the rubric guidance on projects. Cheating also undermines Newlane's ability to honestly, fairly, and accurately verify student mastery of course goals and objectives. Plagiarism is an example of cheating.

Plagiarism and cheating are serious academic offenses that can be easily avoided with a proper understanding of citation guidelines. You'll usually have resources in your course to help you learn or review citation guidelines. If you have questions, you can reach out to Newlane Student or Academic support.

The minimum punishment for plagiarism or cheating violations is a zero for the assignment. This means that the student would need to re-do and re-submit the assignment. At the first cheating violation, the student can re-do and re-submit the assignment. At the second violation, the student is put on academic probation and must meet with an academic advisor. At the third violation, the student is dismissed. The

student can appeal the violation by completing the <u>suspected academic violation appeal form</u>. Appeals are reviewed by the Safety, Ethics, and Integrity Committee, whose decisions are final.

The second and any following suspected plagiarism and cheating violations must be submitted by the reviewing faculty member to the committee on academic integrity--even if the student re-works and re-submits the assignment.

If you (as a student) are unsure whether you may be cheating or plagiarizing, here are some general rules to apply:

- Complete all academic assignments by yourself.
- Don't use any unauthorized aids during an exam or course hearing.
- Acknowledge and cite source material in your projects, papers, or assignments.
- Don't copy another student's assignment, in part or in total, and submit it as your own work.
- Don't copy anyone's work, in part or in total, and submit it as your own work
- Don't purchase help or assignment completion from anyone (while purchasing help may mean you "own" the material in a transactionary sense, it does not make it "yours" in an academic sense)
- Don't copy your online quiz or assignment answers from the internet or from anyone.
- Don't share your online quiz or assignment answers with any unauthorized individuals or groups.

IDENTITY AND ACADEMIC INTEGRITY

By signing the enrollment agreement, students sign the following Identity and Academic Integrity Statements:

Identity:

I verify that I am who I am presenting myself to be, and that I, and I alone will conduct all required coursework for which I am responsible for any course in which I enroll at Newlane University.

Academic Integrity:

I affirm my commitment to the standards of academic integrity in the Newlane University community. I will be honest and truthful and will strive for personal and platform integrity at Newlane University -- that I will be honest in my purported identity and I pledge to uphold the integrity of the learning platform so that it can be trusted to validate mastery by the individuals purporting to have mastered learning content. I recognize that in submitting any project, taking any test, quiz, or exam of any kind at Newlane University, I am implicitly affirming this pledge:

"On my honor, I have neither given nor received unauthorized aid on this academic work, nor am I aware of others doing so."

Newlane University is committed to being a reliable, trusted worldwide resource and platform for verifying mastery of learning objectives. In order to maintain this trust requires the shared commitment of all community members to academic integrity. By this we mean that every community member is honest in their presented identity, and every community member completes their work and presents their work for other members of the community (e.g. a student turns in an assignment to be reviewed by an expert) without unauthorized aid. It means that cheating is not tolerated.

In our commitment to academic integrity, we celebrate that it is better to not yet know a subject well, than to feign mastery of a subject prematurely. At Newlane University, there is very little downside to not yet having mastered one or more learning objective. It is a simple judgment by an expert, who is also a resource to help community members identify pathways for mastery. This idea is captured in a tenet from our manifesto:

Education should not be competitive or judged by other students' achievements. Students should only be assessed on whether they have mastered the stated objective or 'not yet'. Removing competition decreases the incentive for cheating or cutting corners.

Leave of Absence Requests

Newlane strives to offer a quality college degree at a manageable price. Part of helping students earn their degree involves helping them make satisfactory academic progress. Some times, for any of a number of reasons, a student may not be able to make satisfactory academic progress. A leave of absence with Newlane pauses the clock on a student's academic and graduation schedule (and thus the time frame for making satisfactory academic progress). A leave of absence can not extend beyond 30 months.

Student Services

At Newlane University, we are committed to supporting students from registration to graduation and beyond. In addition to the course objectives, instructional resources and assessment tools that provide the basic structure for completing their coursework, students at Newlane University have access to a range of support resources, including a library of university and platform orientation videos, a student handbook, regular support check ins, annual counselor meetings, and alumni and career services resources. See Newlane academic and support services.

Tuition/Fees

We want to help you earn your degree, and we don't want the cost to be prohibitive, or to require burdensome student loans. We have worked hard to make sure that earning a college degree doesn't break the bank for our students. Newlane charges a \$1500 tuition per degree regardless of the time it takes, or the number of transfer credits a student brings. Students make an initial payment of \$249 that includes a \$200 registration fee, and a \$49 tuition installment for a total of \$249, and then pay \$39 a month until they reach \$1500 total per degree (including the \$200 registration fee). Once you've paid \$1500, you won't be charged anything else, but you will still have access to the platform until you graduate. Tuition costs do not include books or materials. Most courses don't require additional books or materials, but some may.

See table below for details:

| Degree | Cost | Books and supplies | Total |
|---------------|--------|--------------------|--------|
| AA | \$1500 | \$0-\$100 | \$1600 |
| BA Major | \$1500 | \$0-\$100 | \$1600 |
| AA + BA Major | \$3000 | \$0-\$200 | \$3200 |

A payment plan with no interest: Students enroll in Newlane University by completing a profile, and making a payment. Students pay a monthly installment of \$39 (with an initial \$249 first tuition payment).

There is no interest charged on the payment plan. This cost does not include books or supplies, which may cost an additional \$100. This cost is for each degree earned through Newlane; \$1500 for the associate's degree, and \$1500 for the bachelor's degree. In order to enroll in Newlane University's Bachelor degree program, a student must first complete the Associate of Arts degree, or transfer the equivalent number of credits. If you come to Newlane with no prior college credits, the total tuition cost for an associate and bachelor's degree is \$3000.

When you register with Newlane, you agree to pay all monthly charges until you have paid \$1500. If you pay the regular initial installment of \$249, then the regular \$39/month subscription fee, it will take around 3 years to reach \$1500.

A degree with no hidden fees: After you pay the \$249 first tuition payment, you only pay \$39 month until you reach \$1500 for your degree. Though there may be additional costs for books and supplies estimated at \$100 - \$200 per degree, there are no additional administrative or other hidden fees.

A self-paced degree: Because completing courses and degrees at Newlane uses a competency-based approach, and due to platform efficiencies, mastery that students bring to the table, and possibilities for self-paced learning, students may be able to complete all coursework for a degree in faster time frames than is typical in conventional colleges and universities.

Refund Policy

CANCELLATION REQUIREMENTS AND REFUND ELIGIBILITY WITHIN FIRST 30 DAYS

All Newlane University students (whether provisionally-enrolled or matriculated) can cancel their Newlane account at any time. Evidence of a written statement of withdrawal or cancellation via the Newlane Contact form, or via email sent to ben@NewlaneUniversity.com or contact@NewlaneUniversity.com, shall be deemed as meeting the terms of the account cancellation.

All Newlane University students receive a full refund within a thirty-day cooling-off period of their registration, including the \$200 registration fee and initial tuition payment. Evidence of a written statement of withdrawal or cancellation via the Newlane Contact form, or via email sent to ben@NewlaneUniversity.com or contact@NewlaneUniversity.com, within thirty days of the student's registration shall be deemed as meeting the terms of the account cancellation within the cooling-off period.

If a student cancels their account, they can re-apply in the future, but will not receive credit for any past payments. This policy applies to all account cancellations, whether a student withdraws, or is dismissed.

Upon receipt of a cancellation request, Newlane issues all eligible refunds within 30 days.

NEWLANE REFUND POLICY FOR STUDENTS AFTER 30 DAYS

After 30 days, students may be eligible for a refund depending on how many credits they have completed, minus the registration fee. If a student has completed more than 50% of the credits for a program, they are not eligible for a refund. If a student has completed 50% or fewer of the credits for a program, they are eligible for a refund of a prorated portion of the tuition.

After 30 days from a student's registration, the student's eligibility for a refund, and the refund amount are determined by the student's progress in their degree program according to the **Newlane Prorated Refund Policy** and detailed in the tables and schedules following (see **Program Completion and Refund Eligibility Schedule** table for refund calculations and **Sample Table of Refunds After 30 Days** table for examples). Note, although the BA Philosophy degree consists of 120 credits, students cannot directly enroll in the BA Philosophy program without first completing the AA program, or transferring the equivalent number of credits. This requirement is designed to limit the student's financial liability and time commitment.

Newlane Prorated Refund Policy (after 30 days from registration)

- If a student has not completed any substantive work (substantive work includes any of the following: submitting a course project; completing a Mid-course hearing or Course hearing) and wishes to cancel, they are eligible for a 100% tuition refund, minus the registration fee.
- If a student has completed some substantive work (substantive work includes any of the following: submitting a course project; completing a Mid-course hearing or Course hearing) up to 10% of the total credits required for their degree program and wishes to cancel, they are eligible for a 90% tuition refund, minus the registration fee.
- If a student has completed more than 10% and up to 25% of the total credits required for their degree program and wishes to cancel, they are eligible for a 75% tuition refund minus the registration fee.
- If a student has completed more than 25% and up to 50% of the total credits required for their degree program and wishes to cancel, they are eligible for a 50% tuition refund minus the registration fee.
- If a student has completed more than 50% of the total credits required for their degree program and wishes to cancel, they are not eligible for a refund.

Newlane Refund Policy and Transfer Credits

Refunds for students with transfer credits are determined based on the **number of remaining credits required for the degree after acceptance of transfer credit,** and the **number of credits earned through Newlane.** Any credits accepted for transfer are excluded from refund calculations. For example, if a student had 30 transfer credits to the Associate degree (which requires 60 credits), they would need to earn an additional 30 credits to complete the degree. If the student earned six credits through Newlane, they would be eligible for a refund correlating to completing 20% of the credits required for the degree (6 earned / 30 remaining credits post-transfer). While the denominator in refund calculations is adjusted to exclude transfer credit, all other facets of the policy apply as stated.

Assessment Benchmark Considerations for Refunds

Outside of students who don't complete any substantive work, the completion percentages are based exclusively on Newlane course hearings completed. Newlane refund calculations do not figure in other assessment or completion benchmarks, such as completion of the course exam or course project.

Program Completion and Refund Eligibility Schedule

| % of Total Program Credits Completed | Credits earned through Newlane in the AA Program OR in BA program if student has already earned an AA degree. (60 total credits required) | % Tuition refund eligibility and tuition retained by Newlane | Registration fee |
|--|---|--|------------------|
| No substantive work | 0 and no substantive work | 100% refund eligible 0% retained | \$200 |
| ≤ 10% | Up to 6 | 90% refund eligible 10% retained | |
| >10% - 25% | Between 7 and 15 | 75% refund eligible 25% retained | |
| >25% - 50% | Between 16 and 30 | 50% refund eligible 50% retained | |
| >50% - 100% | Over 30 | 0% refund eligible | |

| | 100% retained | |
|--|---------------|--|
| | | |

See Sample Refund Calculations:

Refunds for the first 30 days (\$200 registration fee and \$49 first tuition payment).

If a student wishes to cancel their Newlane account within 30 days of registration, they receive a full refund. If a student registered with a deferred tuition payment and paid less than \$249 and canceled within the first 30 days of registration, they would be refunded the full amount paid.

Sample Table of Refunds After 30 Days

If a student wishes to cancel their Newlane account after 30 days of signing this agreement, they may be eligible for a refund depending on the percentage of the program they have completed.

| Total Cost = \$1500 Registration Fee = \$200 Total Tuition Cost (Total Cost - Registration Fee) = \$1300 | | | | | | | |
|--|------------------|---|---------------------|--|--|--|--|
| Years enrolled | Est. Amount Paid | % of degree program credits complete (hypothetical) | Total Refund Amount | | | | |
| 1 | \$680 | 0% No substantive work | \$480 | | | | |
| 1 | \$680 | 10% | \$350 | | | | |
| 2 | \$1145 | 20% | \$620 | | | | |
| 3 | \$1500 | 30% | \$650 | | | | |
| 4 | \$1500 | 75% | \$0 | | | | |

For more details on the above sample refund calculations, see table below:

| Registrat | Total Cost = \$1500 Registration Fee = \$200 Total Tuition Cost (Total Cost - Registration Fee) = \$1300 | | | | | | | |
|-------------------|--|---|---------------------------|--------------------|---|---|---|--|
| Α | В | С | D | E | G | н | I | |
| Years enrolled | Est. Amount Paid | % of degree program credits complete (hypothetical) | % tuition refund eligible | % tuition retained | % retained of Total Tuition Cost (E * \$1300) = | Est. Amount Paid - Total Tuition Retained (B - G) = | Payment - Retained - Registration Fee (H - \$200) = | |
| | | (Hypothetical) | | | Total Tuition Retained | Payment - Retained | Total Refund Amount | |
| 1 | \$680 | 0% | 100% | 0% | \$0 | \$680 - \$0 = \$680 | \$680 - \$200 = \$480 | |
| 1 | \$680 | 10% | 90% | 10% | \$130 | \$680 - \$130 = \$550 | \$550 - \$200 = \$ 350 | |
| 2 | \$1145 | 20% | 75% | 25% | \$325 | \$1145 -\$325= | \$820 - \$200 = | |
| | | | | | | \$820 | \$620 | |
| 3 | \$1500 | 30% | 50% | 50% | \$650 | \$1500 - \$650 = | \$850 - \$200 = | |

| | | | | | | \$850 | \$650 |
|---|--------|-----|----|------|--------|--------------------------|------------------------|
| 4 | \$1500 | 75% | 0% | 100% | \$1300 | \$1500 - \$1300 = | \$200 - \$200 = |
| | | | | | | \$200 | \$0 |

Students initial the following statement as part of the enrollment agreement:

I understand that I can receive a full refund within a thirty-day cooling-off period of my initial registration payment and that after this, my refund eligibility and amount is based on my progress in my degree program minus a registration fee, in accordance with the Newlane prorated refund policy. [Student initial]

Financial Assistance

Newlane University does not participate in Federal Financial Aid, and does not offer nor arrange any loans to students for money used toward fees or tuition at Newlane University.

Scholarship Policy and Procedures

In line with the mission of Newlane University to make quality liberal arts higher education accessible by breaking down barriers, including the barrier of cost, Newlane offers scholarships to students as determined by the Newlane Scholarship Committee. Newlane scholarships are in the form of canceling tuition charges. Newlane does not reimburse tuition funds that a student has paid prior to applying for a scholarship, nor does it distribute funds to scholarship recipients, but only ceases some or all tuition charges.

Scholarship recipients are determined by the Newlane scholarship committee. In making its selections, the committee considers the students financial need and academic promise.

Newlane University currently offers four scholarships:

1. Financial Need: Partial

2. Financial Need: Full

3. Academic Promise: Partial

4. Academic Promise: Full

While applicants can apply to more than one scholarship, any recipient may only receive one scholarship.

WHEN: The Newlane Scholarship committee meets at least twice a year, in July and December to review scholarship applications, and to determine scholarship recipients.

HOW SCHOLARSHIP RECIPIENTS ARE DETERMINED: In conducting the review, the Scholarship committee reviews the applicants' financial need and/or academic promise. Determinations for Financial Need or Academic Promise scholarship rewards are made strictly on the basis of an applicant's financial need, or academic promise, respectively, as determined by the Scholarship Committee. The Scholarship Committee is not obligated to reward any applicant a scholarship, regardless of the number of scholarship applicants or the amount of scholarship funds available.

Program Costs:

The cost for each Newlane program is \$1500. The maximum scholarship reward is \$1500 in tuition costs. A full scholarship (either for Financial Need or Academic Promise) is \$1500. A partial scholarship (for either Financial Need or Academic Promise) is \$750. The Scholarship committee also has discretion for awarding one or more partial scholarship for an amount above or below \$750. As a reminder, Newlane always only cancels tuition charges. Newlane does not reimburse tuition payments that a student has made, nor does it distribute funds to scholarship recipients.

Procedures:

In order to apply for a scholarship, students must complete the scholarship application form.

Counseling/Placement

The philosophy degree at Newlane University provides a background suitable for a wide variety of career options including law, business, politics, teaching, journalism, counseling, writing, etc. While many philosophy graduates pursue work upon completion of the bachelor degree program (such as director, manager, writer, or analyst positions in a wide range of business, community, or governmental organizations) most view the philosophy degree as a superb foundation for a wide range of graduate programs. Students with a philosophy degree are desirable for numerous careers given their strong background in logic and argumentation, excellent reading and writing skills, and highly-developed critical thinking skills.

The Associate of Arts degree at Newlane University provides a good foundation in the traditional core of higher learning: Science, English language arts, Social science, Fine Arts, Math, Health, History, etc. With an Associate Degree from Newlane University, candidates would be qualified for a range of occupations, including: Business office manager, medical receptionist, dental office manager, administrative assistant, customer service agent, teacher assistant, etc.

Newlane University offers career and alumni services, but does not in any way guarantee job placement, or wage or salary levels.